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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

HITESHES

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Capital VC
Limited (carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), it
is my pleasure to present you the Group’s audited annual results
for the year ended 30 September 2017 (the “Year” or “Fiscal Year
2016/17”).

BUSINESS REVIEW, IMPORTANT EVENTS
OCCURRED AFTER THE END OF FINANCIAL
YEAR AND PROSPECT

Consistent with previous year, the overall stock market in
Hong Kong continued behaved unstable in the fiscal year 2016/17.
Hang Seng Index (“HSI”) experienced a sharp fall in December
2016, dropped from 23,297 as at the end of September 2016 to
21,574 in December 2016. Since then, HSI rebounded sharply and
eventually marked at 27,554 as at the end of September 2017.
Although the HSI rose more than 4,000 points over the year ended
30 September 2017, the rising stocks in Hong Kong mainly focused
on certain blue-chipped stocks. Many small-mid cap stocks were
not performing well. In such diverging market environment, the
Group’s listed securities, mainly small-mid cap stocks, performed
not as good as in previous years. The Group continued to make
loss on listed investments and loss of approximately HK$525.5
million was recorded during the Year.

The business of gold trading has become very keen in the
Hong Kong market. Loss of approximately HK$0.7 million was
shared to the Group from the Company’s associate — CNI Bullion
Limited (“CNI") during the Year. In the year ended 30 September
2016 (“Year 2016”), loss of approximately HK$5.9 million was
shared. Although the Group still considers that CNI has a positive
outlook in the long run, the Group has disposed of 34% of its
equity stake in Kendervon Profits Inc. (“Kendervon”), which is
the sole shareholding company of CNI, and resigned as the sole
director of Kendervon. As such, the 66% equity investment in
Kendervon has changed to be recorded as an available-for-sale
investment of the Group, and CNI was then no longer an associate
of the Group. Gain on disposal of 34% equity stake in Kendervon
of approximately HK$15.3 million was recorded during the Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

PITESHRES

In connection with the unlisted investments, the Group
acquired 29 shares or 29% of the share capital of Uni-Venture
International Investment Limited (“Uni-Venture”) at a consideration
of HK$34,500,000 during the Year. Uni-Venture group is engaged
in the business of provision of workforce solutions on manpower
sourcing, training and recruitment services. Subsequently in
October 2017, the Group has entered into a letter of intent about
disposal of its 29% equity in Uni-Venture to an independent third
party. As of the date of this report, the formal sale and purchase
agreement for selling 29% of the share capital of Uni-Venture is
yet to be entered into. In addition, the Group has disposed of its
equity stake in Starfame Investments Limited during the Year, and
recorded a gain of HK$5.0 million.

As mentioned in the section “Financial Review” above,
the Group recorded impairment loss on unlisted investments
of approximately HK$41.9 million, which was principally the
impairment losses on the Group’s investments in Easy Ideas
Limited (“Easy Ideas”) of approximately HK$9.1 million and Sincere
Smart International Limited (“SSIL”) of approximately HK$26.0
million. Easy Ideas group is principally engaged in the provision of
professional IT service for the development and support of internet
and mobile applications, and the implementation of business
information network and infrastructure. SSIL group is principally
engaged in software application industry. Included in the above
impairment losses of HK9.1 million and HK$26.0 million, were fair
value losses of approximately HK$0.1 million and HK$13.7 million
charged in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
in prior years. The IT and software industries in the PRC have
been very keen in the PRC gradually. The pace of development of
small to medium sized IT companies is generally far below than
those of giant enterprises. Accordingly, significant impairment
losses on the Group’s investments in Easy ldeas and SSIL were
made during the Year.

As mentioned in annual report of the Company in previous
year, it was widely expected that, should economic performance
in the US remain on track, the Federal Reserve would begin to
remove excess liquidity gradually by tapering off Quantitative
Easing sometime in near future. The Federal Reserve in December
2015 lifted rates for the first time in nearly a decade, and gradually
by another 0.25% in each of December 2016 and March, June
and December 2017. Although there is no absolute viewpoint in
the market on the extent of increase in Fed rate in long run, the
interest rate normalization is widely expected to continue in 2018.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

HITESHES

The important events affecting the Group which have occurred
since the end of the year ended 30 September 2017 are detailed
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

Looking forward, we expect the investment environment in the
US and other advance economies will be better than those in prior
years. We consider the mild interest rate normalization may only
affect global investment atmosphere slightly. Even so, the Directors
consider that the change of global investment environment is much
faster than that in the couple of years before. Accordingly, we
will continue to adopt cautious measures to manage the Group’s

investment portfolio.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our
gratitude to all management team and staff members for their
dedication and contribution in the Fiscal Year 2016/17. We would
also like to extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our
shareholders and business partners for their continued support to
as well as their confidence in the Group.

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 December 2017
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kong Fanpeng (“Mr. Kong”), aged 49, has been an
Executive Director since 18 March 2010. He obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Finance and Auditing from Zhongshan University, the
PRC. Mr. Kong was a manager of Huizhou TCL Information System
Limited and Guangzhou Bada Telecommunications Limited. He
also worked as the general manager of the PRC market and an
executive director respectively at Chief Securities Limited in Hong
Kong and Excalibur Securities Limited in (now known as “Delta
Wealth Securities Limited”) Hong Kong, specialising in risk averse
arbitrage trading in both Shenzhen and Hong Kong capital market.
Mr. Kong was the chairman and an executive director of Shenzhen
Wansheng Investment Management Company Limited. He has a
wealth of experience in the Hong Kong securities market for over
25 years and is well versed in investment in the second board
market in both China and Hong Kong. Mr. Kong is the chief partner
of Shenzhen CAS Bright Stone Investment Management Limited.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (“Mr. Chan”), aged 53, has been
an Executive Director since 21 November 2012. He is one of
the responsible officers of China Everbright Securities (HK)
Limited. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person to carry out type
1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. Mr. Chan
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of
Business Administration of the University of South Florida in the
United States of America. Mr. Chan is experienced in dealing in
securities, fund management, corporate management, corporate
finance and managing listed investment companies under Chapter
21 of the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EERE

Since June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment
Limited (stock code: 1217), an investment company listed on
the Stock Exchange, as executive director. Mr. Chan was an
independent non-executive director before 2009 and thereafter an
executive director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8220), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director
of China Investment and Finance Group Limited (stock code:
1226), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in
March 2011. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director
of China Investment Development Limited (stock code: 204), an
investment company listed on the Stock Exchange, in May 2012.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of Alpha Returns
Group PLC, an investment company listed on AIM of London
Stock Exchange, in May 2013. Mr. Chan was also appointed as
an executive director of China New Economy Fund Limited (stock
code: 80), an investment company listed on the Stock Exchange,
in June 2013. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director
of China Trends Holdings Limited (stock code: 8171), the shares
of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange in February 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Ming Gin (“Mr. Lee”), aged 32, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 6 March
2013. Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor Degree of Quantitative Finance
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is experienced
in securities, insurance advisory and fund management having
been working for several wealth and asset management firms.
Mr. Lee was a continuous education training tutor and is currently
a director of the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong,
and his professional qualifications include Certified Financial
Consultant, Certified Financial Planner and member of the Hong
Kong Securities Institution.

Ms. Lai Fun Yin, aged 33, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 27 June
2017. She has over 6 years solid sales and marketing experience

in travel industry.

Mr. Cheung Wai Kin, aged 35, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
27 September 2017. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and he has over 11 years accounting
and auditing experience.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEET R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 September 2017 (the “Year”), the
Group reported a negative turnover of approximately HK$516.2
million (Year ended 30 September 2016 (“Year 2016”): HK$240.6
million (restated)) and net loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$588.0 million (Year 2016: HK$207.0
million). During the Fiscal Year 2016/17, the Group’s results of
financial asset investments declined and recognised an increase
in loss of approximately HK$284.9 million from HK$240.6 million in
Year 2016 to HK$525.5 million in the Year.

In line with performance of the financial asset investments,
the performance of the Group’s investment in bullion trading
business was unsatisfactory this Year. Accordingly, during the
Year, the Group disposed of 34% equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary — Kendervon Profit Inc. (“Kendervon”) and resigned as
the sole director of Kendervon. The 30% equity investment in CNI
Bullion Limited, a gold trading services company and treated as
an associate of the Group before the completion of the disposal
transaction, is the major asset of Kendervon. Gain on disposal of
Kendervon of approximately HK$15.3 million was recorded during
the Year. Upon completion of the disposal of 34% equity interest in
Kendervon in December 2016, Kendervon and CNI Bullion Limited
were no longer a subsidiary and an associate of the Company
respectively. During the Year, the loss of CNI Bullion Limited,
shared to the Group as an associate, was approximately HK$0.7
million (Year 2016: HK$5.9 million). For further details, please refer
to note 13 to the consolidated financial statements included in this
report.

In connection with the unlisted investments, the Group recorded
a loss of approximately HK$41.9 million during the Year (Year
2016: Nil). Please refer to the section “Business Review, Important
Events Occurred after the end of Financial Year and Prospect” on
pages 4 to 6 for further details.

As a result of the retrogressive performance of financial asset
investments and unlisted investments, net of the gain on disposal
of Kendervon, the Group’s net loss increased from HK$207.0
million for the Year 2016 to HK$588.0 million for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENRR DM

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 September 2017, the Group held assets of
approximately HK$1,014.0 million (2016: HK$1,230.3 million),
including bank balances of HK52.2 million (2016: HK$13.4 million).
More cash and bank balances held by the Group this Year is
principally attributable to the rights issue completed in March 2017,
which were detailed below under the heading of “Capital Structure”
and the 8.5% coupon bonds at a nominal value of HK$10,000,000
issued by the Company during the Year. The Group’s current ratio
(as defined by current assets/current liabilities) increased from
9.4 as at 30 September 2016 to 35.8 as at 30 September 2017,
which was maintained at a healthy level. The Board believes that
the Group has sufficient resources to satisfy its working capital
requirement.

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio (defined as total interest-bearing liabilities/
total equity) was 2.4% (2016: 9.1%).

Capital Structure

During the Year, 313,000,000 share options were granted and
exercised at a price of HK$0.118 each, which resulted in the issue
and allotment of 313,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.005 each. In addition, the Company adopted (i) share
consolidation on the basis of every five (5) issued and unissued
shares of the Company of HK$0.005 each consolidated into one
(1) consolidated share of HK$0.025 each, and (ii) 2,066,161,872
rights shares were issued and allotted at a price of HK$0.20 each.
The number of the Company’s issued share capital changed
from 3,130,603,123 ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at
30 September 2016 to 2,754,882,496 ordinary shares of HK$0.025
each as at 30 September 2017.

The net proceeds from the rights issue was approximately
HK$405.6 million, included in which approximately HK$337.0
million was used in investment in listed securities in various
industries in Hong Kong within six months from the date of
receiving the proceeds from the rights issue, approximately
HK$60.0 million was used in investment in unlisted securities in
various industries mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC within one
year from the date of receiving the proceeds from the rights issue
and approximately HK$8.6 million was used in general working
capital needs of the Group within 8 months from the date of
receiving the proceeds from the rights issue. Save as HK$25.5
million, which was planned to be invested in unlisted securities,
yet to be used, the remaining proceeds of the rights issue of
approximately HK$380.1 million were used as intended as of
30 September 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEET R DT

Significant Investments

Significant investments of the Group are included in the
Group’s top ten investments as detailed in notes 19 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Dividend Policy

It is the Board’s intention to distribute any excess balance by
way of dividend to the extent permitted by law, the Memorandum
and the Articles. Dividends will only be paid to the extent that they
are covered by net income received from underlying investments.
Distribution will be made annually after the annual accounts of the
Company are approved by the shareholders but interim distribution
may be made from time to time to shareholders as appear to the
Board to be justified by the position of the Company. Distributions
will be made in Hong Kong dollars.

As the Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio, the declaration of future dividends will be subject
to the decision by the Board and will depend on, among other
things, the earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants
of the Group’s bank loans (if applicable) and any other factors that
our Directors may consider relevant.

Capital Commitment and Operating Lease Commitment
As at 30 September 2017, the Group had no material
commitment.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 September 2017, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Currency Fluctuation

The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises
from its investments in companies located in the PRC, which
are financed internally. In order to mitigate the potential impact
of currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where necessary.
No foreign currency hedge contract was entered into by the Group
during the Year. As at 30 September 2017, the Group had no
outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts (30 September 2016:
Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Human Resources

As at 30 September 2017, the Group had 7 employees
excluding the Directors. Total staff costs excluding Directors’
remuneration amounted to approximately HK$2.6 million.
They perform clerical, research, business development and
administrative functions for the Group. The Group’s remuneration
policies are in line with the prevailing market practice and the staff
remuneration is determined on the basis of the performance and
experience of individual employees.

Material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

Save for disposal of 34% equity stake in Kendervon as detailed
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, during the
Year, the Company does not have any significant acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

Charge of Assets

As at 30 September 2017, the Group had pledged financial
assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$476.0 million to secure the
margin payables.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
with emphasis on transparency, independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations
of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in

corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in its
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) sets out two levels of corporate governance
practices, namely, mandatory CG Code provisions that a listed
company must comply with or explain its non-compliance, and
recommended best practices that listed companies are encouraged
to comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-
compliance. The Company is in compliance with the mandatory CG
Code provisions, save for the deviations discussed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

The Board comprises two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors during the year ended
30 September 2017 (the “Year” or “Fiscal Year 2016/17"). The
Board has appointed Committees to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs. The composition of the Board and the
Committees are given below and their respective responsibilities
are discussed in this report.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year is set
out in the following table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum
number of meetings in the period in which the individual was a
Board Member or Committee Member (as the case may be).
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Board
Notes Meetings
Bz
Name of Director EEHS fia g
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Kong Fanpeng ANBEE 17/(22)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REZEE 22/(22)
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTES
Mr. Lam Kwan wOREE (a) 16/(18)
Mr. Ong Chi King Tk () 12/(13)
Mr. Lee Ming Gin ZHELE 21/(23)
Ms. Lai Fun Yin PEELL (c) 5(5)
Mr. Cheung Wai Kin REREE (d) 11(1)

Notes:

(a) resigned on 30 June 2017
(b) resigned on 31 March 2017
(c) appointed on 27 June 2017

(d) appointed on 27 September 2017

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing their
independence from the Company in accordance with the guidelines
on director independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such Directors to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out on pages 7 to 8 of this annual report.
Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise of the Directors, the Board believes that it is
appropriately structured to provide sufficient checks and balances
to protect the interests of the Group and the shareholders. The
Board will review its composition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to continue
to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility with
the Company, the Company’s performance and current market
situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Period are
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A Director may be appointed either by the shareholders in
a general meeting or by the Board on recommendation of the
Nomination Committee. The Board takes into account criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering a new appointment.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles”), all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company. New
Directors appointed by the Board during the Year, if any, are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
annual general meeting immediately following their appointments.
Further, at each annual general meeting, not less than one-third
of the Directors or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third are required to
retire from office.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. Decisions of the Company are
made collectively by the executive Directors. The Board believes
that this arrangement enables the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s
objectives efficiently and effectively in response to the changing
environment. The Board also believes that the Company already
has a strong corporate governance structure in place to ensure
effective oversight of management.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CG Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Currently all non-executive Directors (i.e. independent non-
executive Directors) have no specific term of appointment but
they are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to serve the purpose of this CG Code provision.

ATTENDANCE IN GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings. An independent non-executive Director could not
attend the extraordinary general meeting held on 7 February 2017
due to his other business commitments.

EEZZAERER
EE2RANHRRERRAS RBEEEE IR

HEERCEBART EERBEVEARGZAE

FRRAZEXNH R BERERESEHE -

BEARBZAEABERAR ([HA]) FEES
ARARBIZRRBEFAG LHESR WHEIEE-
RAFERNEESSZAZTES (WE)NEGCES
Flrz2EXRRBFRAG LB WA EEET-FH
H NREBERRBEFRE LEERAPR=S22—5 (I
EESTAETR-N 2B EEOATHEA=S
Z—ZEBRRE

ERRITHAR

EBATUGRXEA2UGITH  £F RITHE
BRzABUASRRTEAR - ARE - ARFZR
ROVBPTEFHARAFL - ESERB/U LHREREARN
RAEELREL N EEIT LA ARRME B
ERARRZBRE NERTHNE T RE-EFS
RIFHEE NARCHEARECEE A RBIAERE
BERHEEEEE-

FATEEZEH
CEEATUNEXEALUEER FRTEER
MR EREAY REREE - ASAEFRTES
(BVBIFATES) 2 EALRE AN BARE
WA E SR Bt AR AR A DRI M i A
HEARLEEBTAHRIZEM-

HERRAE

BREBELEEERTAGXEA6TR BILENTE
EREMFANTEETREERRARG - — BB ILIFH
TEFHRNAREEMER RARAELEEFR-_F—+
F_ALABTZBRRFEIAE -

Annual Report 2016/17 3§ 15



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERHRE

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1) AND
3.10(2) OF LISTING RULES

Following the resignation of Mr. Ong Chi King as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 March 2017, the
Company has only two independent non-executive Directors. As
such, the number of independent non-executive Directors falls
below the minimum number as required under Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has already appointed Ms. Lai Fun Yin as an
independent non-executive Director on 27 June 2017, and Rule
3.10(1) of Listing Rules has been complied with accordingly.

Following the resignation of Mr. Lam Kwan as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2017, the Company has only
two independent non-executive Directors. As such, the number
of independent non-executive Directors falls below the minimum
number as required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.
Further, the remaining two independent non-executive Directors
have neither appropriate professional qualifications nor accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has already appointed Mr. Cheung Wai Kin,
who is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, as an independent non-executive Director on 27
September 2017, and Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of Listing Rules have
been complied with accordingly.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum
or training courses on relevant topics which may count towards
Continuous Professional Development training.

Pursuant to CG Code A.6.5, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all
Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities either by attending training courses or by
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

16 HHEIBERAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

B EHHRBEII001) %3.102) 2T E
REH

REFHAER -"Z—tF=ZA=+—BHIB
VUHRTEER ARAEEMEBIENITES-
Bt B IEHITER 2 BB ER L HHEIE3.101)
IR TE 2 B E -

ZIN/N T—tFNAZtTERZEREE
ﬁi?f‘f?cﬁi#%ﬂﬂi% Hit 2 &~ EmABE
3.10(1) & -

PMBEEER T —tFAA=THBEEB K
BITEZR ARFHEAMBBUIFNTES Hitt-
BYFRTEEZHBER ETARRE3.10(1) AR
EZHEHB - WIN R TREBIIATESTL T
A EmRBIEIA0) KR E ZEBE EXERINE
St EENGERERE R

VIN/N Z—+HENA-_+LHEZERER
ﬁi(ﬂ%ﬁlasﬁEfﬁ“@@%H%@&%i#%ﬂﬁ%%'
it 2 &~ EmRAIE3.10(1) & (2) fhke

EEE

ERUBERERYZ 85 AARETHEE
RESTHAMLTRARL EREEREZ B
BREN URRLEEEUTEMAT -EFEE
BEREEHEIRBMEMREZ EATLHIIR
B ERREEXRREN 55

RIELETAEAESF EFTE2AKEFXRHE
J?&‘%J?&ﬂﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%&&&ab'LME%,H\%%%EEE{%
%Eiﬁ%‘t&tﬂé\ﬁﬁ%E’U'\%%T%ﬁ%%ﬁ{’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁo%
AEE 2RBEFHEBLFERIREXFELRR
%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%&ﬁ%&ﬁ%&ﬁ$EE§§MZEK%E@E\@Z%
BEXEREIED-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERME

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Yuet Ching has been the Company Secretary of
the Company since July 2017. Ms. Chan is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She reports to the
Executive Directors and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. During the Year, Ms. Chan undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update her skill and knowledge.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (“Audit Committee”) of the Board
comprises all three independent non-executive Directors and is
currently chaired by Mr. Cheung Wai Kin, who possesses extensive
financial and accounting experience in commercial sectors. It is
responsible for appointment of external auditors, review of the
Group'’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. The results for the Year has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. It meets regularly to review
financial reporting, risk management and internal control matters
and to this end has unrestricted access to personnel, records and
external auditors and senior management.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CG
Code Provisions. In the Fiscal Year 2016/17, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. At the meetings, it reviewed the final results
and accounts for the Year ended 30 September 2017, and the
interim results and accounts for the six months ended 31 March
2017 and financial reporting system, and risk management and
internal control systems. It also reviewed the Company’s progress
in implementing the corporate governance requirements as set out
in the CG Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is responsible for reviewing and
determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Lee Ming Gin. The
Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of reference
which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in CG
Code Provisions.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee, comprises all three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lee Ming Gin. The
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on selection of
individual nominated for directorships; making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive; and determining the policy for nomination of
directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated
in CG Code Provisions.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors
and measureable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background, educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience. All Board appointments
will be based on merit, and candidates will be measured against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Nomination Committee has the delegated
responsibilities to monitor the implementation and review the board
diversity policy and report to the Board.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee, which comprises all Executive
Directors, is responsible for formulating investment policies and
reviewing and determining the investment portfolio of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the CG Code provision D.3.1.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, continuous professional development of
Directors, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Listing Rules, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the
systems of risk management and internal controls of the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness, is committed to implementing
effective and sound systems to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the assets of the Group. These risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage risks rather
than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objective, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss; and to ensure the reliability of
financial information for both internal use and external publication
and to provide reasonable assurance against material statement or
loss and achievement of the Group’s objective.

Main features of the risk management and internal control
systems

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the business
and operations, relevant internal control procedures have been set
up for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring the reliability of financial information used
for business and publication. These procedures are monitored and
reviewed from time to time and updated where necessary.

EERMBBRRAARZER

EXEERECAVBRBAESHRENEHE  UE
RZ R B RSB B A0 A b R 2% B 8 78 = [ B BUIR
N REEERERE-ARASFRENREHETA
MBEEBZZRRABE R ER - EEFAERER
BENEEHMERABE LS BRRAREHEEMNS
I8 7 H B R (A ET e

PR B 422 ) B L B
EEQNBERERAEERE R EE K& A &2 S
Emkigd EAREz2HEE BARERNTE
BERTEZHE WERERREDE R A EEEE %
FRREERABEHNEARE EEEMIBRREE
REBEREZRAR BER TS FEEANFRRMK
RARESEMIFBYE 2 RE - RHEFREAIER R
HHONEHMZIMBER 2 AIERE YA HREKNE
R REIELHEBRE  MMETERAERZ B

ﬁ_f o
BN

EERERABERHRR 2 EE S

REREBREESHBFRLK L  HEAANEDE
HEFERERL AREEETHEEBAREE -
BHEARNAX ZRRT ST 8RR ER kM
FTAMBERMAEL ZERFETRHEER R
A b 5 B 0 5 R

Annual Report 2016/17 F£3% 19



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERHRE

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
» Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key processes
of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
+ Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

» Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response
* Prioritizes the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

* Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

* Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

* Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation;
and

* Report the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

The management has carried out periodic review of the
procedures and the implementation of the risk management and
internal control (“RM and IC”) systems, including areas covered
accounting, business and legal compliance.

To further strengthen the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, the Company has engaged independent
professional advisers (the “System Advisers”) to carry out the
internal audit functions and also perform independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC
systems. The System Advisers have conducted an annual review
of and made recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the
Group’s RM and IC systems (the “RM and IC Review”).
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During the year ended 30 September, 2017, the Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the System Advisers, reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s RM and IC Systems in various
aspects including revenue and receipt cycle, cash management
and treasury cycle and financial reporting cycle. The System
Advisers carried out the RM and IC Review on the above cycles
and executed the RM and IC Review which involves the following
tasks:

1. Conducting interviews with relevant management and staff
members relating to the risk management and internal

controls
2. Conducting walk-through relating to the RM and IC Review

3. Reviewing relevant documentation relating to the RM and
IC Review

4. ldentifying significant deficiencies in the design of the risk
management and internal controls

5. Communicate the significant findings with the management
so as to confirm the factual accuracy of the findings. After
the RM and IC Review, the management provided an action
plan so as to mitigate those identified deficiencies in a
timely manner. All internal control findings would be followed
up closely to ensure that the action plan is implemented
accordingly

After the RM and IC Review, the management provided an
action plan so as to mitigate those identified deficiencies in a
timely manner. All internal control findings would be followed up
closely to ensure that the action plan is implemented accordingly.

During the year ended 30 September 2017, the Board was
satisfied that the Group’s RM and IC processes are adequate to
meet the needs of the Group in its current business environment
and that nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s RM and IC systems are inadequate. Moreover,
the existing RM and IC systems are effective and adequate, and
will continue to be reviewed, added on or updated to provide for
changes in the operating environment.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company appointed CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditors of the Company on 8 September 2009. In the Fiscal Year
2016/17, total remuneration paid to the auditors was HK$550,000
(Year ended 30 September 2016: HK$550,000), which represented
statutory audit fee. No non-audit services was performed by
CHENG & CHENG LIMITED during the Fiscal Year 2016/17.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 40 to 46.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company
has made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the Year and they all
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to
enhance such communications, the Company provides information
relating to the Company and its business in its interim and annual
reports.

The Company regards its annual general meetings as an
opportunity for direct communications between the Board and
its shareholders. All Directors, senior management and external
auditors make an effort to attend the annual general meetings to
address shareholders’ queries. The Company also responds to
requests for information and queries from the shareholders and
investors and welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management direct.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
A. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary

General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board of Directors or the Secretary of the Company (Room 2302,
23/F, New World Tower |, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong)
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene such meeting, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

B. Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate a Director

A notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company and a notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected together with his/her
particulars (such as qualifications and experience) and information
as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited shall be lodged at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business (Room 2302, 23/F, New World Tower |,
18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong) or at its share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited (Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong). The period for lodgment of the
notices required will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting, and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report” or the “Report”) is to highlight our approaches
and strategies in pursuit of sustainable development during the
Reporting period. Unless otherwise stated, this Report covers the
sustainability performance and initiatives of our Company and our
investments in listed and unlisted securities business. The Group
primarily adopts the principles and basis of Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) set out in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
as its standards, with an aim to establish a sound environmental,
social and governance structure. For information on the Group’s
corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate Governance
Report” in this Annual Report.

ABOUT THE GROUP

Capital VC Limited (“CVC” or the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its shares are listed
on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 27 October 2003, pursuant to Chapter
21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

During the fiscal year ended 30 September 2017 (the
“Reporting Period”), the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
known as the “Group”) were principally engaged in investing in
listed and unlisted securities mainly in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). As at 30 September 2017, the
Group’s core portfolio comprises of mainly small to medium sized
listed companies. We maintain a diversified investment portfolio to
cover a wide range of business sectors, including, but not limited
to, companies engaged in sectors such as finance, consumer
goods and consumer services, media, manufacturing, construction,
etc.
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OUR MISSION

To achieve medium-term or long-term capital appreciation.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY
DEVELOPMENT

As a good corporate citizen, we are committed to creating
sustained value for stakeholders by incorporating environmental,
social and governance considerations into our operation with
an aim to be a positive force to our environment and the wider
community. To be accountable to all the stakeholders, the
Company endeavoured to minimize the influence to environment,
be aware of the employee well-being and contribute more to the
community.

LISTENING TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS

We believe that understanding the views of our stakeholders
lays a solid foundation to the long-term growth and success of
the Group. We develop multiple channels to a broad spectrum
of stakeholders in order to provide them with the opportunity to
express their views on our sustainability performance and future
strategies. To reinforce mutual trust and respect, we are committed
to maintaining enduring communication channels, both formally
and informally, with stakeholders to enable us to better shape
our business strategies in order to respond to their needs and
expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships.
We have identified employees, business partners, shareholders,
suppliers, government and the community at large as our key
stakeholder groups. The information collected through different
communication processes serves as an underlying basis for the
structure of this Report.

EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable assets
and core competitive advantage of the Group. We aim to provide
employees with respectful and fair working environment through
maintaining a sound system of human resources management
covering the various aspects such recruitment and remuneration.
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The recruitment and promotion of the Group are fair and open
for all employees, and are not affected by age, sex, physical or
mental health status, marital status, family status, race, skin colour,
nationality, religion, political affiliation and sexual orientation
and other factors. In order to provide a good and fair working
environment and safeguard the well-being of the employees, we
seriously consider all those valuable opinions from the employees
for enhancing workplace productivity and harmony.

We offer competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation and benefit packages to attract and retain talents.
Remuneration packages are reviewed periodically based on the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and market
information. We aim to reward and motivate the contribution
and performance of employees and assist them in their career
development and promotion within the Group.

We strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations in
the localities of its operation, and the relevant administrative rules
and measures are strictly enforced. These rules and regulations
specify the requirements relating to employment, labor relations,
employees’ remuneration, medical insurances, mandatory

provident fund and welfare to protect the rights of employees.

As at 30 September 2017, we employed a total of 12
employees, including directors of the Company. All of our
employees are located in Hong Kong.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Although our operation is predominantly office-based, we
adhere to Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter
509 of the laws of Hong Kong) and other applicable laws and
regulations to provide a safe and healthy workplace in order to
protect our employees from occupational hazards. The Group
is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have significant impact to the Group in
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards during the Reporting Period.
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As employees are our most important asset and resource, the
primary goal is to provide a safe and healthy working environment
for the employees under reasonable and practicable conditions.
We committed to achieve this goal by implementing the following
key measures:

* Providing and maintaining in all workplaces under the
Group’s control a working environment which is safe and
poses no threat to health

* Carry out inspection for any unsafe condition and fix it
immediately

 Smoking is prohibited in all enclosed areas within the
offices, without exception

There was no breach of relevant laws and regulations relating
to employee’s health and safety during the Reporting Period.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

All directors, including the independent non-executive directors,
should keep abreast of their responsibilities as directors and the
Company’s business and activities. We provide briefings and
training to develop and refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills,
and update all directors on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate them to discharge their
responsibilities.

We also encourage our directors and employees to attend
relevant training courses and seminars that may require keeping
abreast with the latest changes in laws, regulations and the
business environment. The Group conducts performance
evaluation annually, and based on the assessment result to provide
the staff with appropriate training, and offer job development and
promotion opportunities for outstanding employees.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group’s employment policies in regard to prohibiting
child and forced labour are implemented to respond to the
local employment laws and regulations. Prior to confirmation of
employment, the Group’s human resources department will require
job applicants to provide a valid identity documents to verify that
the applicants are lawfully employable, and ensure full compliance
of relevant laws and regulations that prohibit child and forced
labour.
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The Group has no tolerance for the use of forced labour or
child labour in our business operations. The Group enters into
employment contract with each of its employees in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Our principal business activities do not have significant impact
on the environment and natural resources. Despite this, we are
committed to sustainability by seeking to reduce the environmental
impact of our operations, with a particular focus on reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions and preservation of resources. We do
not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the Group related
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the
Reporting Period.

EMISSIONS

The Group’s core business does not directly generate
significant air emissions, hazardous waste or waste water
discharge. The most common emission from our daily business
activities is greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission which mainly
generated from the consumption of purchased electricity.

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

As energy consumption accounts for a major part of our GHG
emissions, various energy saving measures have been undertaken
to improve energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption of
our operations, for example:

* Deploy natural light and use energy-saving lightings, where
feasible

»  Switch off unnecessary lighting and energy consumption
equipment (e.g. computer) while not in use

» Put the computer to sleep instead of using a screen saver

» Avoid over-cooling of offices and keep the air conditioning
temperature at a suitable temperature

» Clean the air filter of air-conditioners regularly to improve
cool air flow efficiency

» Switch off air conditioning after 7pm even OT work is
required, as less staff utilise air-conditioning in that period
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WASTES REDUCTION

Our wastes are mainly classified into two categories in our
business, including general wastes (household wastes) and
recyclable wastes. We did not generate any hazardous waste
in the ordinary course of business. We avoid wastage with the
following measures:

* Reuse the pen shafts by using refills instead of simply
throwing away the whole ballpoint pens

» Dispose rechargeable batteries in designated collection
boxes

* Arrange recycle company to collect toner cartridges for
recycling

* Deploy recycling bins to collect used paper products, such
as waste paper, letter and envelope

* Avoid the consumption of paper cups and other disposable
utensils

Paper use is an essential item for our operational activities
such as printing of publications and notices. For environment
protection, we implemented the following policies to reduce the use
of paper.

* Adopt an electronic system for filling and documentation

*  Promote electronic communications and “think before you
copy” attitude, we encourage our employee to use both
sides of the paper for printing and copying

» Adopt double-sided printing and photocopying

* Sending email is suggested instead of letters or fax when
possible

* Receive incoming faxes electronically through an e-fax
system, and make hard copies only when necessary using
used paper
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WATER USE MANAGEMENT

Our key water usage is arising from toilet flushing, water tap
and drinking water. We operate in leased office premises of which
both of the water supply and discharge are solely controlled by the
respective building management which is considered that provision
of water withdrawal and discharge data or sub-meter for individual
occupant not feasible. To avoid unnecessary water consumption
from daily operation, we promote staff behavior by encouraging
employees to always turn taps off tightly so they do not drip and
giving priority to effective water-saving products.

We will continue to look for opportunities to reduce further
emissions and wastes on an ongoing basis in order to minimize the
Company’s impacts of activities on the environment and natural

resources.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Our suppliers mainly comprise of those providing general
office supplies, such as, water, paper and stationery. We generally
select suppliers based on their scale of business and reputation.
Our suppliers should comply with all relevant local and national
laws and regulations in relation to unethical behaviour, bribery,
corruption and other prohibited business practices. The Group
expects the suppliers to implement good employment measures
by dealing with their employees fairly and reasonably, respecting
employees’ rights and providing employees with an environment
free of discrimination, child labour and forced labour. The suppliers
also need to adhere to transparency business processes and high
standards of conduct which they have to avoid conflicts of interest
and prohibit corruption and bribery.

During the Reporting Period, we do not aware that any key
suppliers had any significant actual and potential negative impact
on business ethics, environmental protection, human rights and
labour practices, nor any of them had any non-compliance incident
in respect of human rights issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERRE

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY

We are committed to protecting privacy and confidentiality
of personal data of our employees, business partners and other
identifiable individuals. Our employees are instructed to handle
confidential information with due care. We collect and use
information in a responsible and non-discriminatory manner by
restricting the use of the information for the purposes consistent
with those identified in the contracts. During the Reporting Period,
there were no issues occurred concerning the losses of data.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working
environment, the Group strictly adheres to the laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption and bribery irrespective of the area or
country where the Group is conducting business such as the Law
of the PRC on Anti-money Laundering and Hong Kong’s Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance. The Group adopts zero-tolerance approach
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money-laundering. All Directors,
management personnel and staff members must comply with all
related laws and regulations on preventing bribery, extortion, fraud
and money-laundering in their operation regions in their daily
works. All employees not only have responsibility to understand
and comply with above policies on preventing bribery, extortion,
fraud and money-laundering, but also have obligation to report
violation to the person responsible for Board. Any person, who
contravenes the regulations, will be subject to disciplinary sanction.
There were no significant risks relating to corruption have been
identified.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
during the Reporting Period.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to being a responsible member of
the community and aims to make a positive impact on the local
community. Maintaining harmonic relationship with the community
is beneficial to the business development of the Group.

The Group encourages employees to participate in various
voluntary events, creating a strong social network and providing
assistance and supports for the people in need.

BAERLRE

BABAONRERE EBEHLEMAERRE
ARBARBABHRE -RBERESIEREERE
BR-BPEBRHNERBETEANMBIZZE
B NBEEREREBEZTARERERER - XK
SHE BEERLBIBEREM,

k&S

REFRT ERMSHNLLERTIERE TH
AEEAEMERIBEREEER HBEBETERR
B RERERRER (P EARAMER
MR BB (BB IED) - NEEHHEK - $
R BHFRARERNZRRARE -2BEF EBE
ABRETIRHARITHETLAETEEMELEH
DL R MEFRERENZEBEER A
R-2REETERETAZRET LAEREEILHE
BBR BFFRAREOBR TEEFRERESE
BEABBEREMBEBR - EAEILERNALRR
B B EBRNERNE S HEBRR -

RBERE AEERAMBEAARETE BB
PR UFEREREBTEABERERERMEAE
BELEAFENERERBR

HES AR

AEEBRNIRARECENHE -8 FLRERMN
iR -BuEBERERFMENORE BIRAEENE
HEE -

i

\

o

AEERBREEZ2ENREREE AIEARALE
| XEABEAL

Annual Report 2016/17 % 31



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
present the annual report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 30 September 2017 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 50 and page 119.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the Period.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30 September
2017, calculated in accordance with the laws of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to HK$873,097,059 (30 September 2016:
HK$962,206,132).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Executive Directors’ Statement” on pages 4 to 6.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Important events after the end of the financial year
Please refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Protection
Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report in this Annual Report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to anti-
corruption practices for all employees. The Group regards honesty,
integrity and fair play as its core values that must be upheld by
all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the Board has
instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to solicit or
accept any advantage for themselves or others, from any person,
company or organisations having business dealings with the
Group.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities
to advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars
and training courses related to their roles and duties through
course fee subsidies and leave grants. Competitive remuneration
is also offered to employees and their performance is reviewed on
an annual basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the
Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate to
conform with the Period’s presentation, is set out on page 124.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by shareholders’ resolution at the annual
general meeting held on 10 December 2013 (the “Option
Scheme”), unless otherwise cancelled or amended subject to
resolution passed at general meeting of the Company the Option
Scheme will remain in force for ten years from 10 December 2013.
As at 30 September 2017, the remaining life of the Option Scheme
was approximately 6 years and 9 months.

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants,
advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners or service providers of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of the Option Scheme
include any employee (full-time or part-time), director, consultant
or advisor of any member of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of any member of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service
provider of any member of the Group, or any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of the above
classes.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be,
the independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the
basis of the participant’s contribution or potential contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company as at the date of
the shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each Participant under the Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of the Company
subject to options granted during such period under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company) exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue for any time being.
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Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive or
substantive shareholders (as such terms as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, or any of their respective associates
under the Option Scheme or any other share option scheme of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the
prior approval of the independent non-executive directors or
shareholders of the Company as the case may be. Without prior
separate approval from the Company’s shareholders, the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant shall
not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of such grant; and (ii) have an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, in excess of HK$5 million.

Under the Option Scheme, the options granted may be
accepted by the participants concerned for a period of twenty-
one days from the date of such offer. An option shall be regarded
as having been accepted when the Company receives from the
Participant the duplicate of the offer letter duly signed by the
Participant together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1 as consideration for the grant of option. Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme at
any time not exceeding a period of ten years from the date on
which the share option is granted. The subscription price for the
shares on the exercise of an option under the Option Scheme shall
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the
Company’s share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

313,000,000 Options were granted to advisors of the Company
on 21 November 2016 (after trading hours) and fully exercised on
28 November 2016. Further details of these 313,000,000 Options
are stated in note 26(c) to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report. Save as disclosed above, no Option were
granted, lapsed, exercised or expired under the Option Scheme
since 10 December 2013. There was no outstanding Option under
the Option Scheme at the date of this Annual Report. The total
number of shares available for issue based on the Options eligible
to be granted under the Option Scheme was 275,488,249 shares,
which represents approximately 10% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kong Fanpeng
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Ming Gin

Ms. Lai Fun Yin (appointed on 27 June 2017)

Mr. Cheung Wai Kin (appointed on 27 September 2017)
Mr. Ong Chi King (resigned on 31 March 2017)

Mr. Lam Kwan (resigned on 30 June 2017)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Kong Fanpeng
shall retire in accordance with Article 85(1), and Ms. Lai Fun Yin
and Mr. Cheung Wai Kin shall retire in accordance with Article
84(3). All of them being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 30 September 2017, none of the Directors have entered
into any service agreement with any member of the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Neither transaction, arrangement nor contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, existed at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates had any interest in a business which causes
or may cause a significant competition with the business of the
Group and any other conflict of interests which any such person
has or may have with the Group.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Policy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy
are reviewed annually by the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they receive
appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of performance.

Details of the Director's emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2017
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

IN SECURITIES

As at 30 September 2017, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
Discloseable Interests or Short Position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules (collectively
“Discloseable Interests or Short Positions”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 September 2017, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director, the chief executive or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

On 17 October 2014, the Company entered into an
investment management agreement to appointment Insight
Capital Management (HK) Limited (“Insight HK") as its new
investment manager for an initial term of two years commencing
from 21 October 2014 up to 20 October 2016, and extended to
16 October 2018. The Company pays to Insight HK an investment
management fee payable monthly at HK$50,000. Subsequent to
the year-end date, the Company and Insight HK mutually agreed to
terminate the investment management agreement with effect from
1 January 2018.

Save as disclosed above, no other material contract (not being
contract entered into in the ordinary course of business) was
entered into by any member of the Group during the Year.

LITIGATION

The details of a pending litigation are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with its related
parties during the Year.

The Directors conducted review of the related party
transactions of the Group during the Year and were not aware
any transaction requiring disclosure of connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Period have been audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED. CHENG
& CHENG LIMITED retires and, being eligible, offers itself for
reappointment. A resolution for reappointment of CHENG &
CHENG LIMITED as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Cheong Yee
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 December 2017
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wmomom out MoF OB A R A A

10/F, Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BB EFE TITE138%

& B S AE1012

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CAPITAL VC LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
carrying on business in Hong Kong as CNI VC Limited)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
CAPITAL VC LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 123, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 30 September 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

40 BEHARARADT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

HEHARBRIAKRR
(RFI 2B B ML ERA AL CNI VC Limited
LT EBEEER)
=

AT (AT AR [ M) B mMBRRAN S
ATRERIBAZEHEARBERAB ([ERA) L
MEAR (EEE])NEAHBRE  HhaER=
?*tiﬂﬂ—+5mf—%ﬁ#ﬁ§‘aiaﬁt
FEMNGABRR HABEREMEERER.
AESEBRRGARSRER M&ﬁé%%ﬁ%
i (BREEESHHERE) -

iﬁsz‘ﬁw%%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁ‘x#ﬁi’éﬁffi?ﬁ?/ GitihAg ([ &

SRS )RGHNBEEVBRE LR ([FEH
ﬁ#&%ﬁﬁ'JJ)ﬁ?ﬁ’“im&ﬁ%T EEER-ZF
—tFNANA=TENGEAVBRAAREREZA ILF
EMZEMBRARMIERENRE YEKRBES (A
ARG 2 BBEERMEZERE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBEMRE

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HREEREE EMNERNTEERRSEE

Valuation of unlisted available-for-sale investments and unlisted financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FLTARGEREREAAEAA B BEZ I LT FEEZ IG1E

Refer to note 19 and 21 in the consolidated financial statements
BLHEFRE MWK E19K%21

The Group had unlisted available-for-sale investments and  Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of

unlisted financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  unlisted available-for-sale investments and unlisted financial
of HK$143,634,340 and HK$102,000,000 respectively, assets at fair value through profit or loss included:

which were measured at fair value as at 30 September KM EBEEREEBEIFLMAREERERZAA BT AEBRZE
2017. The fair values were assessed by the management B3 T KEE#RTHEZEFBERE:

with reference to valuations performed by an independent
valuer (the “Valuer”) engaged by the Group. =
RZE—tFhRA=+TH EBESEEAEFLTIAHDE
RERBAAEAAEBRREREZF LETUHBEESNA  —
143,634,3407% 7T 12102,000,000% 7T - ¥ IR A R Bt E A
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Assessing the competence, capabilities, independence
and objectivity of the Valuer;
S EEER A 8E 82 B RBE M

Assessing the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key bases and assumptions
used, and discussing these bases and assumptions with
the management and the Valuer;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BREXEE (&)

AREXZEIE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

EMHEBEZNTEEFREE (&)

Valuation of unlisted available-for-sale investments and unlisted financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Continued)

FFETARLEREREAAEFAAN BB BRI LT EREEZ I5E (&)

Refer to note 19 and 21 in the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

F2HEA M B RERME19%21(48)

The valuations of the unlisted available-for-sale investments
and unlisted financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss involved significant judgement and estimates, including
the determination of valuation methodology and the
selection of different inputs to the valuation models.
FEEMARHERERRBRAABENABREE 2 I T
BEZEESRERHAEG G BREEEEETERE
TR ABUR = R EHE -

We identified the valuation of unlisted available-for-sale
investments and unlisted financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as a key audit matter as it required
management to exercise significant judgement and
estimation, and was assessed by us to be a significant risk
of material misstatement.
HPEBERNELTAIHEERERRAAEFABRERZ
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42 BEHAERARDT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions
based on our knowledge;
BERMOTH GRFTERK2ABM:

Obtaining supportive evidence for the significant
judgements and estimates of the valuations and the key
inputs used in the valuations; and
MEEZERAG LG REEMRBZ EE28H ARE
BEFRE: &

Checking the mathematical accuracy of the valuation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBEMRE

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B M A% BUED R 5

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB AR S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the REBMREBXGRENBERREREZER (8
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, NEEZZEBBZFET BMECHERAH
we determine those matters that were of most significance in EMBREMERAEELSH AMBEKEHEHE
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current BRERE-BRIFERIERTETFAFBEEILFIE X
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe REBEERZBEALAT RMRREEZZTETHEAAEE
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation Mz ARBRBBEARMNEBYSIE 2 M m T ER
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely HRERERE  TRIBRMS A ZEANR S ot FI8 -

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED BMEHMEBERAERD A
Certified Public Accountants HESI AT

Lam Hok Nin, Sammy MEBF

Practising Certificate Number: P02975 HMEBE R : P02975

Hong Kong, 29 December 2017 BB —_E—+F+A=+NH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
M it BT BT
(Restated)
(&=E7))
Continuing operations FEREEK
Turnover e 7 (516,171,722)  (240,626,519)
Other income g A 9 5,000,000 7,280,000
Administrative expenses THE A (28,383,914) (26,449,396)
Impairment losses on A HERERBEERE
available-for-sale investments (41,864,660) -
Share-based payments VAR 10 B B 2E 2 14 5k (3,881,200) =
Operating loss gIEEE (585,301,496)  (259,795,915)
Finance cost BB A 10 (8,585,269) (3,248,695)
Loss before tax B B A1 B 1B 11 (593,886,765) (263,044,610)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frisf (Ax) /#H& 12 (9,843,716) 59,121,766
Loss for the year from continuing SEREER T AFEER
operations (603,730,481) (203,922,844)
Discontinued operation ,‘;&%ﬂ:‘@‘”‘ E$3
Profit/(loss) for the year from HEEEB 2 ANFERF, (BE)
discontinued operation 13 15,712,949 (3,082,785)
Loss for the year attributable to RABIRERBARBEAREEZER
equity holders of the Company (588,017,532) (207,005,629)
Dividend =) 14 - -
(Loss)/earnings per share Bk (BE) /&BF
— basic and diluted —ERREE
— Continuing and discontinued —RBELE R BT
operations 15 (0.3137) (0.3002)
— Continuing operations — B ETS 15 (0.3221) (0.2957)
— Discontinued operation — R EE R 15 0.0084 (0.0045)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBEmRkHEMZE KSR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

Loss for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive loss for the year,
net of tax

Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Net movement in investment revaluation
reserve

ARRBERBARGAFEER

BRRRzZAFEEME2EER

RESHFHEBEDFR

Notes

Braz

19(a)

2017
—E—tF
HK$

(588,017,532)

(75,021)

2016
—ETREF
HK$

BT
(Restated)
(g=75)

(207,005,629)

(5,662,920)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

ARARERBARGEAEE

attributable to equity holders of FHEBEERE
the Company (588,092,553)  (212,668,549)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income IATATEEREE
for the year attributable to: 2HE (F1E) M= siE:
Equity holders of the Company ZAYNCIE EoE S 2SN
— from continuing operations —REAFBEEEET (603,805,502)  (209,585,764)
— from discontinued operation —RE R I EET 15,712,949 (3,082,785)

(588,092,553)

(212,668,549)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A N
e BT RS AR R 3R
At 30 September 2017 A= —+F L A="+H
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
HiaE BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment W= & & 17 18,822,966 29,730,553
Interest in an associate R—EEE QR s 18 - 44,724 111
Available-for-sale investments AREERE 19 143,634,340 126,721,080
Deferred tax assets REFREE E - 9,843,716
162,457,306 211,019,460
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - ZE REMEWKIE
other receivables 20 163,790,117 41,774,352
Financial assets at fair value through Z AR B ABREEZ
profit or loss MBEE 21 627,113,409 862,451,966
Amount due from an associate JE U — [T B & N B SRR 18 = 73,466,465
Tax recoverable Al U B 7 18 8,508,838 5,085,503
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 22 52,151,520 13,420,371
851,563,884 996,198,657
Asset classified as held for sale ESHEARBELEZCEE 23 = 23,039,693
851,563,884 1,019,238,350
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals EMENRIERETER 24 23,775,099 108,965,838
Net current assets RBEERE 827,788,785 910,272,512
Total assets less current liabilities #EERTBERS 990,246,091  1,121,291,972
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings SFEEE 25 10,000,000 =
Net assets EEZFE 980,246,091 1,121,291,972
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A v S
e AR &R
At 30 September 2017 A=T—+FhLA=+H
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZT—XREF
Notes HK$ HK$
k=3 BT BT
Capital and reserves EARREHE
Share capital LN 26 68,872,062 15,653,016
Reserves G 911,374,029 1,105,638,956
Total equity attributable to equity RATIRERFB ARG ERBE

holders of the Company

980,246,091 1,121,291,972

Net asset value per share SREETE

28 0.3558 0.3582

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 123 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 December 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Cheong Yee
BRE=
Director

EZE
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Kong Fanpeng
7L AL HE
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREHE

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAREEEAREES
Retained
Capital Investment Share profits/
Share Share reduction revaluation options  (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
BRAHR R& BRE RERA/
BAE RHEE 1 EftfRE 1 (RitE#E) BRR
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AL BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 October 2015 WZE-F%+A-H 7,825,408 932,994,786 22,826,010 6,008,000 = 364,256,067 1,333,910,271
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (207,005629)  (207,005,629)
Other comprehensives loss for the year AFEENZERR - - - (5,662,920) - - (5,662,920)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEE2ARBLEE = = = (5,662,920) - (07,005629)  (212,668,549)
Issue of ordinary shares by bonus share BT AR BT ERR
issue (Note 26(b)) (J1:226(8)) 7,826,108 (7,826,108) - - - - .
Share issue expenses (Note 26(b)) RAETER (Hit2600) - (40,000) - - - - (40,000)
Exercise of warrants (Note 26(a)) TR (Hit26(a)) 1,500 88,750 - - - = 90,250
At 30 September 2016 W=Z-~EnA ;Jr H 15,653,016 925,217,428 22,826,010 345,080 = 157,250,438 1,121,291,972
At 1 October 2016 RW=E-~%+A-H 15,653,016 925,217,428 22,826,010 345,080 - 157,250,438 1,121,291,972
Loss for the year REERE - - - - - (588,017,532)  (588,017,532)
Other comprehensives loss for the year AEEEMRERE - - - (75,021) - - (75,021)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEREREEE - - - (75,021) - (588,017,532)  (588,092,553)
Grant of share options (Note 26(c)) R EERE (H7260c)) - - - - 3,881,200 - 3,881,200
Issue of ordinary shares by exercise of TR ERERARTERR
share option (Note 26(c)) (H1#26(c)) 1,565,000 35,369,000 = = (3,881,200) 3,881,200 36,934,000
Issue of ordinary shares by rights issue IERAA BT EER
(Note 26(e)) (fri26(e)) 51,654,046 361,578,327 = = = - 4132323713
Share issue expenses (Note 26(e)) RIAETER (Hit26e)) - (7,000,901) - - - - (7,000,901)
At 30 September 2017 RZZE—+tFNA=1AH 68,872,062 1,315,163,854 22,826,010 270,059 - (426,885,894) 980,246,091
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

MERERER

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

FLOWS

2017
—E—tF
HK$

2016
—E—RF
HKS$

T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Loss before tax B 56 A 5 18 (577,951,816)  (265,561,083)
Adjustments for: LYEL AT A%
Depreciation of plant and equipment BER&EITE 10,907,587 10,404,408
Dividend income from investments RKERE EMESFZ
in listed securities & S A (159,889) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMMHEERE 2l
investment (5,000,000) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary e E A e 2 s (15,337,796) =
Impairment losses on available-for-sale AMEEHERE 2R EEE
investments 41,864,660 —
Interest income ISR N (10,489,986) (4,657,556)
Interest on margin payable ERFFRERIBZFE 8,585,269 3,248,695
Net realised loss on financial assets BRAREFAEREERZ
at fair value through profit or loss M EEBEAEE
ik 356,303,360 180,159,108
Net unrealised loss on financial BARBEFABSZEREREZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss M EE T REBREE
ik 169,172,424 60,467,776
Share-based payments AR BE2E Z 3K 3,881,200 =
Share of results of an associate FE(h—EE S QAR EE 748,660 5,948,664
Operating cash flows before movements in BERECERHINLERS
working capital mE (17,476,327) (9,989,988)

Increase in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, net
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Decrease in other payables and accruals

BAREFABRREZ
P EEE IFHE
BRFOR B E R A UK
H () md
HtENRARESER
R

(290,137,227)

(8,960,089)

(85,190,739)

(120,802,703)

93,369,304

(141,983,864)

Cash used in operations KEEBR R (401,764,382)  (179,407,251)
Dividend received from investments REKEEMESZ
in listed securities &% B A 159,889 =
Interest paid EAHE (8,585,269) (3,248,695)
Interest received B F B 4,250,788 1,225,365
Tax paid BEA#E (3,645,335) (5,091,236)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&#%(KBESRHEHE (409,584,309)  (186,521,817)

52 ®#AIRAMRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERENER

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZTE—RF
Note HK$ HK$
Mt it BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZTH
Amount (advance)/repayment from to (BF)/%kEa—HEKE
an investee company/associate, net DA/ BEREZ ()
ERFE (4,350,000) 22,375,758
Purchases of plant and equipment BERE & &HE - (4,429,153)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHLERE (34,500,000) (13,000,000)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HERHEEIRE 2 S HIE
investments 19,999,986 —
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE K BA R ZERE 14,000,000 =
Interest received 2 UH B - 3,432,191
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM RETBHRS (RE) FHA
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B (4,850,014) 8,378,796
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT L BRATE R 450,166,373 =
Expenses on issue of ordinary shares BTERARER (7,000,901) (40,000)
Proceeds from issue of bonds BITEFZAISRIA 10,000,000 -
Proceeds from exercise of warrants TR HEF Z PG IA - 90,250
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ®EZEHHESAATFE
ACTIVITIES 453,165,472 50,250
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BeE R\ EEWE M
CASH EQUIVALENTS R ) HEE 38,731,149 (178,092,771)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUReMRSEEYD
BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,420,371 191,513,142
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRREEEYD
END OF YEAR
represented by, bank balances AIRITE R E D 22 52,151,520 13,420,371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

GENERAL

The Capital VC Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of
its principal place of business is Room 2302, 23rd Floor, New
World Tower |, 18 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in investing
in listed and unlisted companies mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the year ended 30 September 2017 (the “Year”), the Group
has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16  Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 16  Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Consolidation Exception
and HKAS 28

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The application of the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material financial
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 2  Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 4  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Asset
for Unrealised Losses*
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Related
Amendments'’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
or 1 January 2018, as appropriate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. As the Group has not completed its assessment,
further impacts may be identified in due course and will be
taken into consideration when determining whether to adopt
any of these new requirements before their effective date
and which transitional approach to take, where there are

alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

O has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

56 w®#HAIRARAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

RMFITREBTEBYBREER
(IBERUHHREEN]) (80

AEBEREFEZEFTBEVBRELE R E
BRIARBRBENSEARARECBHTE A
REE KRR E G MAKE AR EE R
BAE-—FEE ARNRERZENREER
B HIAT 2 BRI % F 3R E MR B AT £ R
BERTERRRBARBEDEREBZSE

s/,
e

R

77'>

FEESFEHER
BARBREANREEL N ALERY HET
ST ADRAA B8 10 F5 & 3B AR
e

FEMBEBRRDEREESANLAG([BES

SRR A E )%E%Z%i%ﬁﬂ%#&%ﬁﬂllﬁﬁ” c 1tt$7|\ :

REMBRREBEBIMES LTRAUREE
AEPIREZ BERBEEANS -

HERBEEE
BEVBRREEARAUERADARENBA
ARGz ER MR WS A TEMS 8
AR B R B I

«  HEREHRITEED:

. %Eﬁi&ﬁﬁ%Z%ﬁﬁﬁTﬁé B R

HEEERBEABRT LM =BEHRERES *ﬁ‘-
HY A EHBRE AAEESEERFEHER
ZHIREHR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and/or annual
rates of depreciation adopted, if any, are as follows:

— Leasehold improvements 25% — 50%

— Furniture and fixtures 25%
— Office equipment 25%
— Computers 25%
— Motor vehicles 25%
— Vessel 25%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item) is included in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss in the year in which the item is dereognised.

Asset classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Asset classified as held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate, the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, and the Group discontinues
the use of the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the investment
(or a portion of the investment) is classified as held for sale.
Any retained portion of an investment in an associate that has
not been classified as held for sale continues to be accounted
for using the equity method. The Group discontinues the use
of the equity method at the time of disposal when the disposal
results in the Group losing significant influence over the
associate.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any
retained interest in the associate in accordance with HKAS 39
unless the retained interest continues to be an associate, in
which case the Group uses the equity method.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs of disposal.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.

60 EHAIRAMRAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

TESTEE @)

TERBELHEZEE (4)
REBENETERBERBNREH LI RE
MWHEEFER MAe LBEE - BTHEZR
ﬁﬁ% PREBDBRFELE MAKERNK
B(RHBOIRE)DBABIFLHEERDERE
Wﬁ%m%ﬁ RIEE AR AN BRFIE
HENRBERR 2 RENEARERBDBERE
RS EZAR MEEERAEEREHHER
ANEBEAFE AEERNHERRIFRERE-

RHEEZRER AEEREEE G ERIFI95%
MR E QAR EMREEEAR BRIFREE
SR HBERR] EHBR N AKEE A%

N
VIl

2k o

B

DERFELREZHERBDEENZERAREE
BERREREERAZBEEE -

RIEREET
RIEREXBR/ASEXBEOAKE D HEE
EReREFVEAKENEMERFRERD AR
FEYNIERBEGAEEMEERL AR HE
B EEEBF R E IR R E —
Em—F0 ABEMRBEMRBLHRE QA

—HEBREERXZEBHTADOBR/BHELE
MIRER (UBREERE) D BEARILEEER-
MEBERZERNN DB AR IEEEERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expenses over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liabilities, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income or expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale investments. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivates are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including other receivables,
amount due from an associate and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at

FVTPL or loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale investments are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in investment revaluation reserve, until the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss (see accounting policy

on impairment loss of financial assets below).

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter

party; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. For available-for-
sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amounts, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments in listed securities
including financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income from financial assets including financial
assets at FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Other income is recognised whenever it is received or
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expenses on straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance
costs in the consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) one entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to advisers

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair value of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options granted. The
fair values of the goods or services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to advisers (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
other reserve within the equity. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to other reserve within the equity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i) Useful lives and residual values of items of plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements
in production, or from a change in the market demand
for the product or service output of the asset, expected
usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the
care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful
lives and/or the residual values of items of plant and
equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed, at each financial
year end date based on changes in circumstances.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Estimation of impairment loss recognised in respect of
loan and other receivables

The Group determines the impairment loss recognised
in respect of loan and other receivables in respect of
advances to the debtors based on objective evidence
of impairment and historical loss experience of the
individual balance of the counterparty.

Valuation of available-for-sale investments

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar unlisted equity securities, the Group determines
the fair values by using valuation techniques based on
information from a variety of sources, including the latest
information of the available-for-sale investments.

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale investments
as at 30 September 2017 was HK$143,634,340 (2016:
HK$126,721,080), further details of which are set out in
Note 19.

Valuation of unlisted bond investments

In the absence of current prices in active market for
similar unlisted bonds, the Group determines the fair
values by using discounted cash flow valuation technique
with input not based on observable market data.
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4. ARESFTHERAHTHBEAREZEZE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(v) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of the business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
included margin payable and interest-bearing borrowings as
disclosed in Notes 24 and 25 and equity attributable to equity
holder of the Company, comprising issued share capital and

reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, issue of debentures, new share issues
and share buy-back.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

6. ®@IA
(a) EMIEZDE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets W EE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABRERECUBEE 627,113,409 862,451,966
Loan and receivables B R R EWRIE
— other receivables —H b E W F B 163,790,117 41,774,352
— amounts due from an associate — & U — R Bt & R R FOR - 73,466,465
Bank balances RITEERR 52,151,520 13,420,371
215,941,637 128,661,188
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 143,634,340 126,721,080
986,689,386 1,117,834,234
Financial liabilities M aE
Other financial liabilities at amortised 12 ¥k #4pk ANFIE 2 H b Bt 5 & (&
cost
— other payables —H b EA A 23,775,099 108,965,838
— interest-bearing borrowings —iTEEE 10,000,000 =
33,775,099 108,965,838
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6. €T H (&)
(b) M¥EREEEERBE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets at FVTPL,
other receivables, amount due from an associate,
bank balances, other payables and interest-bearing
borrowings. Details of these finance instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
Accordingly, the management considers the foreign
exchange risk to the Group is not significant.

(ii) Other price risk
The Group’s available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at end of the reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to equity security price risk.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting date.

In respect of available-for-sale investments and
financial assets at FVTPL, the following table
demonstrates the impact on loss before tax, other
comprehensive income and equity if the price had
been 5% (2016: 5%) higher/lower.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Other price risk (Continued)

6. €T H (&)
(b) BMIBEREEEEREXR (&)

TS E R (&)
(i) EMERRER (&)

Decrease/
Carrying increase
amount of Decrease/ in other Increase/
equity/debt increase in comprehensive decrease in
investments loss before tax loss equity
BA/EBERE BRAEE Ht2EESR R
Z&EE WD /B B,/ #m/ wmy
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B BT
2017 ZE-tF
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 143,634,340 = 7,181,717 7,181,717
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEFABEREZ
HHEE
— listed securities —tmEH 525,113,409 26,255,670 - 26,255,670
- bond investments —EARE 102,000,000 5,100,000 = 5,100,000
Decrease/
Carrying increase
amount Decrease/ in other Increase/
of equity/debt increase in  comprehensive decrease in
investments  loss before tax loss equity
A/ BB A BREAER HEtzAEE AR
ZRHEE D/ WD/ #0055
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
2016 —ERE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 126,721,080 - 6,336,054 6,336,054
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFABEREY
HBEE
— listed securities —FtmEH 756,151,966 37,807,598 = 37,807,598
- bond investments —EHRE 106,300,000 5,315,000 = 5,315,000
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. €T H (&)

(b) MEREMREEBERBX (H)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Other price risk (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock market price or other relevant risk variables
had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the group which expose the
group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. It is also assumed that none of the group’s
available-for-sale investments would be considered
impaired as a result of the decrease in the relevant
stock market price or other relevant risk variables,
and that all other variables remain constant.

(iii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk for changes in market interest rates through its
investments in debt securities and interest bearing
borrowings. Change in interest rates may affect the
value of the debt securities and interest bearing
borrowings and therefore result in a potential gain
or loss to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk for changes in market interest rates through its
deposits at floating interest rates, which are subject
to variable interest rates. There would have been no
significant impact on the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at 30 September 2017 in relation to
each class of financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimize the credit risk, the
Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual financial assets at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. The Group has concentration
risk as amount due from available-for-sale investment is
approximately 51% of total prepayments, deposits and
other receivables.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is
minimal.

Maturity analysis

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at
30 September 2017 and 2016. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
is required to pay.

6. €T H (&)
(b) BMIBEREEEEREXR (&)

REBEE R
AEEZEERERNARNLES #FHE
CREHEREREZFEH AEBEAEZ
mBERREE-

PR H 5T
TRAJNAEBZMBEER T —LF
RZZE-—REAA=ZTBHZHRHA QBB
B TRILBEBEMBABZRBBERESR
EMRY ZEMBABDIREAEEAN
REREHHDE-

2017 —E—+tF
On Total
demand/ One year contractual
within to Over  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount
RER/ BHRER
—FR —FEWMEF BEWE RERBLR REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Other payables HitENIR 23,775,099 - - 23,775,099 23,775,099
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEBE 850,000 10,850,000 - 11,700,000 10,000,000
24,625,099 10,850,000 - 35,475,099 33,775,099
2016 —E—RF
On Total
demand/ One year contractual
within to Over undiscounted Carrying
one year two years two years cash flow amount
RER/ BHRER
—FR” —FEERE BARE HRENBEE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Other payables Hi 3R 108,965,838 - = 108,965,838 108,965,838
108,965,838 - - 108,965,838 108,965,838
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair Value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively; and

— the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions as input.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group approximate
their fair values due to their immediate or short-term
maturities.

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at end of the
reporting period across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement.
The levels are defined as follows:

— Level 1: fair values measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

—  Level 2: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs,
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

— Level 3: fair values measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value (Continued)

6. €T H (&)

(c) ARME (M)

2017
—E—tF

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E— EZR E=R HEE

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREGFABR
BREZHISEE

— listed securities — &S 525,113,409 - - 525,113,409

— bond investments —EAFRE = - 102,000,000 102,000,000

Available-for-sale financial assets B ECHBEE
— unlisted securities —JE LB - - 143,634,340 143,634,340
525,113,409 - 245,634,340 770,747,749
2016
—E-RF

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F— & E=/R B

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL BARERAER
REZHBEE

— listed securities — &S 756,151,966 - — 756,151,966

— bond investments —BEAFKRE - - 106,300,000 106,300,000

Available-for-sale financial assets AHEZHIEEE
— unlisted securities — 3k % - - 126,721,080 126,721,080

756,151,966 — 233,021,080 989,173,046
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €@ IA (®)
(c) Fair value (Continued) (c) AR{E (#)
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured $$%$Efﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁb{x*ﬁiﬁﬁﬂizﬂ
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The hEFE - TRIREETZEVBREEAR
following table gives information about how the fair BzEM(ABMS  FAEAMGERNREH
values of these financial assets are determined (in ABIE) -

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Relationships of

Significant unobservable
Fair value  Valuation unobservable inputs
Financial assets 2017  hierarchy  technique(s) inputs Range to fair value
ERAAEER TABREA
NBEE Bt F  RAERN EHERE BAHR &[E HERARBECBE
HK$
BT
Financial assets at FVTPL
BORBAAEREEL
NBEEE
Listed securities 525,113,409 Level 1 Quoted bid price N/A N/A N/A
EmEH (2016: E—#% FBRE AR TEA TER TER
756,151,966)
525,113,409
(ZE—RF:
756,151,966
Bond investments 102,000,000 Level 3 Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 11.78% to 15.30% The higher the discount
BHERE (2016: F=#H BREASN i3 (2016: 4.72% to  rate the lower the fair
106,300,000) 13.07%) value
102,000,000 11.78% £15.30% HREBWAX DAEM
(—z NE: (ZE—KREF: 2N
106,300,000) 4.72%%13.07%)
Available-for-sales
financial assets
HEEZHBEE
Unlisted securities 143,634,340  Level 3 Discounted cash flow  Free cash flow N/A The higher the free
FEMES (2016: E=# BEBER BRAER TiEF cash flow, the higher
126,721,080) the fair value
143,634,340 BRRERAX
(Z2—R%: AREBA

126,721,080)

Weighted average  11% to 21.41% The higher the

cost of capital (2016: 11.75% to  weighted average cost
MEFHERKAER  15.11%) of capital, the lower

1% %£21.41% the fair value
(ZE-—RE: IEFHERKABA -
11.75% £15.11%) AR E#HN

Discount 18.10% to 20.32% The higher the discount
for lack of (2016: 16% to for lack of marketability
marketability 20.32%) of capital, the lower the

Bz s a R 18.10% %£20.32% fair value
(Z2—RF:16% Rz BEEMERREA
%20.32%) DRE™N

Annual Report 2016/17 3 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1 —Z—

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(c) Fair value (Continued)

During the Year, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair
value measurements. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the

tFAA=TRILEFE

EMIA @

(c) ARME (M)

end of the reporting period in which they occur.

7. TURNOVER

The amount of each significant category of turnover is as

follows:

Continuing operations
Net realised loss on financial assets
at FVTPL

Net unrealised loss on financial assets

at FVTPL
Dividend income from investments
in listed securities

Interest income on amounts due from

investee companies
Bank and other interest income

7. BEHE

FREEXEY
BAREFABZREBEZHBEEL
B3R AR5 R
BAREARER
RE B RFRE
BREEWESZRSWA

BrMBEEZ

FEW R R E R AR Z M B M A

RITREAMAF B WA

MARFEE F—
W EE R FEERE =R
ASRE L AEE 2 BE RN R ERZ ]|
THRERAANEBEFRERZAHEE -

BEBAZEBEINESELT

2017
—B—tf
HK$

(356,303,360)

(169,172,424)

159,889

4,893,385
4,250,788

RMEE—_RAREFEZMH
Z\\/LD{EQ+EZE

2016
A
HK$

BT
(Restated)
(ge&E5)

(180,159,108)

(60,467,776)

365

(516,171,722)

(240,626,519)

Discontinued operation

Interest income on amount due from

an associate

RIERE T

& — [ Bk & X B RIR 2 FLB IR

1,345,813

3,432,191

Among the net unrealised loss on financial assets at FVTPL,
a loss of HK$4,300,000 (2016: gain of HK$300,000) was
related to the bond investments which were designated as

financial assets at FVTPL.
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8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker for decisions about
resources allocated to the Group’s business components and
for the review of the performance of those components.

The principal activity of the Group is investing in listed and

unlisted companies. Interest in an associate was regarded

as discontinued operation. The Group has identified the

operating and reportable segments as follows:

Investment in — Investments in listed securities and

financial assets unlisted bonds
at FVTPL

Investment in — Investments in unlisted securities

available-for-sale

investments

REBBNEEDH URBEETBLLERKE
REBEBEKBD 2 ERD BEARE Rigs %
FERBY 2 RABRMZ EHMEREDAER -

77

AEEZIEEBRRELTRIFLTAF R
—HBERRZERERARIEREERE K
BEBAAT 28 RA HRDE:

A

BRERRAER - REMEHFNMIELED
ABERRIEZ BEHFZRE

M5 EE

REAMHBERE - RIFLTEFZERE
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e VIR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Investment in

Investment in

2 EBE R ()

For the year ended 30 September 2017
BE-S-tENA=THLEE

financial assets available-for-sale Continuing Discontinued
at FVTPL investments Unallocated operations operation Total
RERME
FTABERE RETH
LHBEE HERE KB BREEEY RIELEEY @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Segment revenue pak: L6 (521,075,895) 4,893,385 10,788 (516,171,722) 1,345,813 (514,825,909)
Administrative expenses THEA - - (28,383,914) (28,383,914) - (28,383,914)
Impairment losses on At &R E R A
available-for-sale B
investments - (41,864,660) - (41,864,660) - (41,864,660
Segment result NHER (521,075,895) (36,971,275) (28,373,126) (586,420,296) 1,345,813 (585,074,483)
Other income HiA - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 15,337,796 20,337,796
Share-based payment SRR AEEZF R - = (3,881,200) (3,881,200) = (3,881,200)
Finance costs BERA (8,585,269) - - (8,585,269) - (8,585,269)
Share of results of FElE—RBE AR
an associate 2 - - - - (748,660) (748,660)
(Loss)/profit before tax BEa (58) /BF (529,661,164) (31,971,275) (32,254,326) (593,886,765) 15,934,949 (577,951,816)
Income tax expense FEHRX (9,843,716) - - (9,843,716) (222,000) (10,065,716)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(BB) /BT (539,504,880) (31,971,275) (32,254,326)  (603,730,481) 15,712,949 (588,017,532)
Segment assets NHEE 644,918,409 289,219,612 79,883,169 1,014,021,190 - 1,014,021,190
Segment liabilities NEHERE 13,499,647 - 20,275,452 33,775,099 - 33,775,099
Other segment information ~ Eft 5 & #
Depreciation of plant and BERERENE
equipment - - 10,907,587 10,907,587 - 10,907,587
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZHESR (&)

For the year ended 30 September 2016
HEZZ-—"ENA=TBLEE

Investment in

Investment in

financial assets ~ available-for-sale Continuing Discontinued
at FVTPL investments Unallocated operations operation Total
REBRRAE
TARRRE REWE
ZHBEE HERE RAR SEEERE  RIEEEXH &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B B BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(ms5)) (#m=5)) (BE7) (8&3)) (ms5))
Segment revenue A EE (240,626,884) - 365 (240,626,519) 3,432,191 (237,194,328)
Administrative expenses TRER - - (26,449,396) (26,449,396) - (26,449,396)
Segment result PEEE (240,626,884) - (26,449,031) (267,075,915) 3,432,191 (263,643,724)
Other income EfA - 1,225,000 6,055,000 7,280,000 - 7,280,000
Finance costs BEKA (3,248,695) - - (3,248,695) - (3,248,695)
Share of results of ElE-REEAREE
an associate - - - - (5,948,664) (5,948,664)
(Loss)/profit before tax BHE (FB) /BF (243,875,579) 1,225,000 (20,394,031) (263,044,610) (2,516,473) (265,561,083)
Income tax credit/(expense) Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ B%) 59,121,766 = = 59,121,766 (566,312) 58,555,454
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (BiB) /B (184,753,813) 1,225,000 (20,394,031) (203,922,844) (3,082,785) (207,005,629)
Segment assets NHEE 876,965,662 159,250,675 52,811,204 1,089,027,541 118,190,576 1,207,218,117
Assets classified as held NERBENECEE
for sale - 23,039,693 23,039,693
Segment liabilities AR 102,252,055 - 6,713,783 108,965,838 - 108,965,838
Other segment information ~ E 5 HE#
Depreciation of plant and BERRENE
equipment - - 10,404,408 10,404,408 - 10,404,408
Purchase of plant and BERRR%E
equipment - - 4,429,153 4,429,153 - 4,429,153

The Group’s operations and specified non-current assets are

located in Hong Kong.

Given the nature of the Group’s operation is investment

holding, there was no information regarding major customers

as determined by the Group.

AREBEZEENFEFRBDEETINREE -

ENAEENEEEERRER

EERRASTIERFPNER -

fi» B okt 3 4 X
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. HMkA
2017 2016
—E—+tfF A
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Continuing operations FFEREET
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HER S8 E 2 W
investment 5,000,000 -
Interest income on amounts receivable HENHIEERE 2 ERFRIEZ
on disposal of available-for-sale AMEKA
investments - 1,225,000
Sundry income FEIEA - 6,055,000
5,000,000 7,280,000
Discontinued operation BIEREEK
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MIB ARz W 15,337,796 =
10. FINANCE COST 10. @& R A
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
BT P TT
Continuing operations FEREET
Interest expenses on borrowings: BEZAMERX:
— margin accounts —HFREP 8,585,269 3,248,695
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11. LOSS BEFORE TAX 1. RBAIE B
The Group’s loss before tax has been arrived at after AEEZBRBMAIEES MR :
charging:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Continuing operations FEREER
Directors’ emoluments EE YA 1,293,333 1,309,255
Staff costs BT RA
— Salaries, allowances and other benefits — & - 85 & H 1@ 2,528,048 1,749,000
— MPF Scheme contributions —BES T EIH R 68,085 56,500
Total staff costs ®EIRA 3,889,466 3,114,755
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 550,000 550,000
Depreciation of plant and equipment BERRETE 10,907,587 10,404,408
Interest on margin payables ENfFFRZREZFE 8,585,269 3,248,695
Minimum lease payments under operating HEWEREBELEHNz&EEE
lease for rented premises 22,000 510,845
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. FiBHExX (&)
(a) The amount of taxation expenses/(credit) charged/ (a) BEEEBEm=FRNB/ (FFA)ZREBER:
(credited) to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (EH) s
represents:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(g=E75))
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Current tax credit BNV HA R 15 K 2 - (560,579)
Deferred tax expense/(credit) EERIERS (KE) 9,843,716 (58,561,187)
9,843,716 (59,121,766)
Discontinued operation BIPREETE
Current tax expense BIHAT TE ) 2 222,000 566,312
Deferred tax expenses EEFIER X - =
222,000 566,312
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1 —Z—

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is arrived at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the Year 2017 and 2016.

tFAA=TRILEFE

The income tax for the Year 2017 and 2016 can be
reconciled to the loss before tax per the consolidated QTE

statement of profit or loss as follows:

Continuing operations
Loss before tax

FRREXRK
B 15 A &S 18

HE N

12. FRERIEAX (ER) (&)
(a) (&)

BHDE=F

—tR-T-REE
ZfEEt BRI B FIA16.5% 7T & °

E—tR_ZB-REEZMBEH

SR BRHEAEBREERNOT

2017
—B—tfF
HK$

P

(593,886,765)

2016
—REF
HK$
BT

(Restated)

(K&E351)

—-=

(263,044,610)

Nominal tax at domestic income tax
rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible

AR TS R16.5% 1 B 2 & FiE
(ZZ— "% :16.5%)
BEARBWMA Z IS &

AR 2 REEE

(97,991,317)

(17,125,309)

(43,402,361)

(28,879,428)

for tax purpose 26,728,483 8,459,273
Tax effect of temporary differences REREREZH VBT E

not recognised (3,124) 4,700,750
Tax effect of origination and reversal JRE MELDEREZB I RETE

of temporary differences 19,370,218 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FHERZHIBEIE 2 MIEHE 78,864,765 -
Income tax expense/(credit) FigfiFAx, (Ex) 9,843,716 (59,121,766)
Discontinued operation HIEREEK
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELAT&F], (EE) 15,934,949 (2,516,473)
Nominal tax at domestic income tax L AN FT1S T E16.5% T E 2 B EMIE

rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (ZZFE—RF:16.5%) 2,629,266 (415,218)
Tax effect of share of results of FE(R—HBE R REBE R BEE

an associate 123,529 981,530
Tax effect of income not taxable for B ZERFUR A 2 Tt 75 577 £

tax purpose (2,530,795) -
Income tax expenses BT 15 5 =2 222,000 566,312

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of HK$602,267,391 (2016:
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the unused tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profits stream.

90 ®#HAIRAMAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

HK$183,958,007)

HEE

RBEHR AEE2AHAREES
8 5602,267,391%8 T ( =
183,958,007 7t ) A R SH R R & F - 5
AR BETERIRRBFR - I B A B AR
RIEEFRIBEE -

. B
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

(b) The component of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the Year 2017 and
2016 are as follows:

12. FRBHMAX (E&) (&)
(b) REAHMBRRERZ EEHEBEERE/ (&
E)VBAR-_E—+ R AEEIE
HImT

Net unrealised
gain/(loss) on

financial assets Unused tax
at FVTPL losses Total
BRAREFA
BREE %
BEZKRER
Wz (E18) AEAHIE
2| [3E] #Et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Continuing operations FEREET
At 30 September 2015 RZE—RAFNA=1H 49,914,378 (1,196,907) 48,717,471
Credited to profit or loss for the year FARFEERE (29,405,023) (29,156,164) (58,561,187)
At 30 September 2016 RZZE-REAA=+H 20,509,355 (30,353,071) (9,843,716)
Charged to profit or loss for the year BEAEEEEMR (20,509,355) 30,353,071 9,843,716
At 30 September 2017 RZZE—+FNA=TH = = =
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 21 December 2016, the Company and an independent
third party (the “Counterparty”) entered into a formal sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company sold
34 shares or 34% of the share capital of Kendervon Profits
Inc. (“Kendervon”) to the Counterparty. Upon completion
of the aforesaid transaction on 31 December 2016, the
Company’s shareholding in Kendervon decreased to 66% and
the Counterparty held 34% equity interest in Kendervon, the
Company’s equity interest in CNI Bullion Limited decreased
from 30% to 19.8%, and the Company had resigned as
the sole director of Kendervon on 31 December 2016. The
amount due from CNI Bullion Limited was classified as
amount due from an associate as at 30 September 2016.
Upon completion of the disposal, the balance was reclassified
as amount due from an available-for-sale investment. As at
30 September 2017, the balance was HK$84,055,663, which
was included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
of HK$163,790,117 (see note 20).

The profit/(loss) for the Year from discontinued operation was
analysed as follows:

VYE=ZA(IRGEFDILEXNEERZ &
I ANAEIB MR S %5 & Kendervon Profits
Inc. ([Kendervon | ) 2 348% % 17 234 % A& 725 « i
—E—RNETZA=Zt+—HERLERSE K
A A7 Kendervon 2 IR #2 J3 > £66% * 1 22 5 %
73 %5 Kendervon I8 # 2 34% - R 2 A AR Bl 4L
FeREBRRAAZKREHI% FTHEE19.8%
ARBIMERZZE—AF+ZA=1+—HEFE
Kendervon 2 Mt —E £ - EWHEIL F & RESR
BRARRER-_ZE—"FNLA=ZTASEAENRK
—BBEARRB - RNEETKE AREFD
BARKAHLERERE - R_T—tFNA
=+ B #% 584,055,663/ 7T i AFE L FOE -
& K H A fE W 3K I8163,790, 1178 TR (R M &
20) °

REFBIEEEEB BN (BR) AN :

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$ HK$
BT T
(Restated)
(ig&5))
Interest income on amount due from CNI  EWFEIL ST ©IREFR AT (EAHE
Bullion Limited (as an associate) NAE)FIBZFEMWA 1,345,813 3,432,191
Share of loss of CNI Bullion Limited (as EEHPEIE T IREBR AR (FERHE
an associate) AR EE (748,660) (5,948,664)
Gain on disposal of Kendervon H & Kendervon 2 Y& #5 15,337,796 =
Current tax expense BV EA 7% 18 B 2 (222,000) (566,312)
15,712,949 (3,082,785)
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 13. RIEREEK (&)
During the year ended 30 September 2016 and the period REBEE_Z-—REAA=ZTHRHLEFERZZ—X
from 1 October 2016 to 31 December 2016 (the completion F+A-—RBEZZE—X"F+=-A=+—H(HE
date of disposal of Kendervon), Kendervon has not recognised Kendervon 2 52 iX B 81) Hi [ - Kendervon iz #&
any revenue and expenses, and only recognised share of BREMEkE AL WER=—FT - F+A—
loss of CNI Bullion Limited as associate of HK$748,660 for FE_ZT-—REF+-_A=+—HHHBEIREMNL
the period from 1 October 2016 to 31 December 2016 (year PEIETSREBR AR (EABE QT ERE
ended 30 September 2016: HK$5,948,664), which have been 748,660 T (BE—_E— RNENA=1THILHE
included in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or [£:5,948,664%8 L)  ZEBEEFALAEER
loss for the Year. REEZireBmKe
During the year ended 30 September 2016 and the period REBEEZZ—AR"FAA=ZTHEFER=ZZ—RX
from 1 October 2016 to 31 December 2016, Kendervon Group F+A—HEZZ—AF+-A=+—HHHA"
did not generate any cash flows. Kendervon & B0 EE A (EAIB &K= ©
The net assets of Kendervon Group as at the date on Kendervon S B AR EE L L= fl#EZ A (B
which the Group lost control (i.e. 31 December 2016) were TE-RFETZA=T—RBINEEFER
HK$67,015,144, which represented Kendervon's interests 67,015,1447% 7t #HE 7 Kendervon X B Jb 75
in CNI Bullion Limited as associate. Save for the interest in SREFRAR (EREEERAE]) 2R BRI
CNI Bullion Limited, Kendervon Group did not have any other Blit 7 @R E AR AT 2%z 5N Kendervon 5
asset or liability as at 31 December 2016. ER—T—"F+_A=+—HUEFWEME
EfafE-
2017
—E—+F
HK$
BT
Gain on disposal of the Kendervon Group: i & Kendervon 5 B 2 I %5 :
Consideration RE 28,000,000
Recognition of an available-for-sale investment RA M E45E (B Kendervon 2 66% %1% )
(i.e. 66% equity interest in Kendervon) 54,352,940
Net assets disposed of B EEESE (67,015,144)
15,337,796
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHESRARE:!
Consideration of the disposal in cash and HEReRReEFEM2RE
cash equivalents 28,000,000
Less: Receivable for the disposal as at the W ASERK B HA 2 &S U SRIE (M1 iE20)
completion date (Note 20) (14,000,000)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FFHERERBESEEYD -
14,000,000
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13.

14.

15.

BAREIRAR A

tFAA=TRILEFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities as held for sale
of Kendervon Group as at 30 September 2016 which have
been presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position represent 34% of the Group’s interest in
Kendervon.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the Year (2016: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share — continuing and
discontinued operation are based on the Group’s loss for
the Year attributable to the equity holders of the Company of
HK$588,017,532 (2016: HK$207,005,629).

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share —
continuing operations are based on the Group’s loss for the
Year from continuing operations of HK$603,730,481 (2016
restated: HK$203,922,844).

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/loss per share
— discontinued operation are based on the Group’s profit for
the Year from discontinued operation of HK$15,712,949 (2016
restated: Loss of HK$3,082,785).

The above basic and diluted loss/earnings per share based
on the weighted average number of 1,874,308,478 (2016
restated: 689,619,069) ordinary shares in issue during the
Year.
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13.

14.

15.

RIEREEK (@)
RZZE—"FNLA=1+H8" Kendervon £ EiF{E
HEZEERBENETZHN(ERGET

U
34%

F 2 7%1) 15 A& % B R Kendervon # 25 2

e
EFTUTBRALRNAFEZRE (ZE—RF:
') .

S8 (BE) BF
FRERABRE-FELERRKRIEEEEXBL IR
BARNGREFREARGASEEZAFEEBE
588,017,532/% 7T ( =& — /~ F : 207,005,629/

JL)ETE ©

BREANBEEE -BECEEBIRELRST
EAEBEREFELS X 2 E1H603,730,481
BIL(ZE—NFKLET 203,922,844 70 ) 7

Ho

BREARBERAN BE-KRLEEEED
DREBEAFEAEERERIEEEEB A
15,712,949 L (Z T — NFLEF : FH1B
3,082,7858 L )5t H o

tmi BEARBEEEBE B DRAFED
17 8 A% 2 N HE F 15 £01,874,308, 478Hx (==
NERKES:689,619,0690% ) 5T E o
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

16. DIRECTORS®' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven

(2016: five) directors were as follows:

2017

16. EEREREEEM S

(a) EBM=E
ENSENTLE(ZE—RF - AR)EF
£EEZHemT:

—E—tF

Other emoluments

Hitff<
Salaries,
allowances,
and other  Performance = MPF Scheme
Fees benefits bonus contributions Total
e 2R BEE
ok REAMEF EMIA SRR @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors: BTES:
Chan Cheong Yee REE 600,000 - - - 600,000
Kong Fanpeng ALK 390,000 - - - 390,000
Independent non-executive BYFYTES:
directors:
Cheung Wai Kin (Appointed on  RfE# (17
27 September 2017) “T—+tFNA
“+HBEZMH) 2,000 - - - 2,000
Lai Fun Yin (Appointed on REE (B
27 June 2017) “Z—+%5~A
“t+tREZRE) 31,333 - - - 31,333
Lam Kwan (Resigned on ME(RZE—t4F
30 June 2017) NAZTHEIT) 90,000 - - - 90,000
Lee Ming Gin ZHIE 120,000 - - - 120,000
Ong Chi King (Resigned on FFH(R
31 March 2017) “Z—+%=H
=+ —HEE) 60,000 - - - 60,000
1,293,333 - - - 1,293,333
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE
16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

16. EERSREEEMS (&)

(a) EEM= (&)

2016 —ET—RF
Other emoluments
Htnie
Salaries,
allowances, and Performance MPF Scheme
Fees other benefits bonus contributions Total
o= wiEE
He REMEH ERa FERR 23
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT BT
Executive directors: HTES:
Kong Fanpeng LS 360,000 - - - 360,000
Chan Cheong Yee BEE 589,255 - - - 589,255
Independent non-executive BUFBRTES:
directors:
Lam Kwan ¥ 120,000 = = = 120,000
Ong Chi King TFH 120,000 - - - 120,000
Lee Ming Gin FHIE 120,000 - - - 120,000
1,309,255 - - - 1,309,255

The executuve directors' emoluments shown above
where mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the Year 2017 and 2016. No incentive payment for
joining the Group or compensation for loss for office was
paid or payable to any director during the Year 2017 and
2016.

The remuneration of directors including the performance
bonus is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individual and
market trends.
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Senior management’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group during the year, two (2016: two) were directors of
the Company whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2016: three) highest
paid individuals was as follows:

16. EERSREEEMS (&)

(b) EREEEME
FEEREAFEZLERSHALEEM
F(ZE-RE MB)ARAES FHM
EHBERNEX-EBR=2(ZF—KF:
ZR)BEHFALZBENT:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Salaries, allowances and other e EeREMET
benefits 1,695,747 1,327,000
MPF Scheme contributions A e s BN 36,000 47,400
1,731,747 1,374,400

The emoluments of the three (2016: three) highest paid
individuals fall in the following bands:

B 48 7l
% %1,000,000/% 7T

Emoluments bands
Nil — HK$1,000,000

ZER(ZEBE—RE ZR)BEeF ATz
J& AT 4R -

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
—E it —E—RF
3 3

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss for office was paid or payable
to any highest paid individuals (including directors and
other employees) during the Year 2017 and 2016.

RIB—EtR-_Z-RFE BEREMX
BHAL(BEREEREMER) X TH/E
NEAME EREMARNERZ 2R EF
RARERARE
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. BEREHE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
improvements  and fixtures equipment ~ Computers vehicles Vessel Total
HENXEE HKAREE  BAERE Bl RE mE @t
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
COST A
At 1 October 2015 RZE-RE+A—-H 1,421,831 318,736 215,432 169,300 6,984,804 29,128,735 38,238,838
Written-off A (1,421,831) - - - - - (1,421,831)
Additions NE = - - - 1,341,502 3,087,651 4,429,153
At 30 September 2016, RZZE-"ENA=TH:
1 October 2016 and ZE-RETA-RAk
30 September 2017 —E—+E1A=1H - 318,736 215,432 169,300 8,326,306 32,216,386 41,246,160
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2t &
At 1 October 2015 RZZ-R§+A-A 1,421,831 311,181 213,164 161,460 263,568 161,826 2,533,030
Eliminated on written-off g iz ok (1,421,831) - - - - - (1421,831)
Charge for the year REEHE - 7,555 2,268 7,840 2,055,476 8,331,269 10,404,408
At 30 September 2016 and RZE-R"ENR=TAR
at 1 October 2016 RZZ-RE+A-H - 318,736 215,432 169,300 2,319,044 8,493,095 11,515,607
Charge for the year RERHE - - - - 2,081,577 8,826,010 10,907,587
As at 30 September 2017 RZZ—+EAA=1H - 318,736 215,432 169,300 4,400,621 17,319,105 22,423,194
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
As at 30 September 2017 RZE—+ENA=+H - - - - 3,925,685 14,897,281 18,822,966
As at 30 September 2016 RZE-—~ENA=TA - - - - 6,007,262 23,723,291 29,730,553
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—REBE AR 2=
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
Notes HK$ HK$
s BT B TT
Cost of investment in an unlisted associate 7 — 1 3F FHEE & QA 2 RE KK - 4,500,000
Share of post-acquisition results EIE U IB 1B 24 - 63,263,804
Transfer to asset classified as held for sale EEENBEAEIEHE 2 EBE (a) - (23,039,693)
- 44,724,111
Amount due from an associate JrE W — R Bt = R B FRIE (b) - 73,466,465
As at 30 September 2016, the Group had interest in the RZZE—R"FLA=1+H AEERUATHER
following associate: AR ER:
Percentage
Form of Place of of equity
business Class of incorporation Issued share attributable to
Name of associate structure shares held and operations capital the Group Principal activities
AL R KEBENS
BENTR AR (BgBsL FMERGER Behy ERITRA EZE I TEEER
CNI Bullion Limited Incorporated Ordinary share Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 30% Provision of services
(“CNI Bullion”) (Note (a))  on trading of gold in
gold market
REL A REERAA  FMKL LR B 15,000,000 ¢ 30% ?fﬁﬁéﬁ%zﬁﬁ
(THhELFERE]) (Hizt(a)) BRRMRS
Notes: Btz :
(@) On 26 September 2016, the Company and the Counterparty (@) RZE-—RFALAZTRB XRAFERFHHH

entered into a letter of intent, pursuant to which Kendervon,
the then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company holding 30%
equity interest in CNI Bullion Limited, intended to issue and
allot new shares to the Company and the Counterparty. Upon
completion of the aforesaid share allotment, the Company’s
shareholding in Kendervon would decrease to 66% and the
Counterparty would hold 34% equity interest in Kendervon,
the Company’s equity interest in CNI Bullion Limited would
decrease from 30% to 19.8%, and the Company would resign
as the sole director of Kendervon. Since the asset was available
for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale is highly
probable, 34% of the Group’s interest in CNI Bullion Limited
was classified as asset held for sale as at 30 September 2016.
As detailed in note 13, notwithstanding the aforesaid letter of
intent, the Company and the Counterparty entered into a formal
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
sold 34 shares or 34% of the share capital of Kendervon to
the Counterparty. The disposal transaction was completed on
31 December 2016.

As at 30 September 2016, the amount due from an associate
was unsecured, bears interest at 8% per annum and repayable
on demand.

AINERE B ARRBETREILEFSEES
IR A F]130% A # 2 & 8§ 2 & [ B A 7] Kendervon
BAARARIERSGHFEITREENBRD - R T
B b it B 17 BE 2% 1% - 2K A 7] 1A Kendervon 2 %
R E66% MR 5 ¥ 75 15 £ F Kendervon fi&
H234% ARARFRIEHFSEEBRAF
Z RS BH30% PR £19.8% @ AN A A IR 8 B (T
Kendervon zMi—ZEE RN AMEER E Al K
R ATEENES E & R A AL H & Zli‘ilﬁA
FEILEFSREBRAAZIMD EZN T —

FNA=+THESPHARLELEE-BRE ﬁt
AR A K AN 13RI A AR ERZHFE
AVEXEERE Bt RARERR ST H
% Kendervon 2 34% i% 15 2034 % A% 28 - 5% 18 () &
REER-_TE—A"ET-_A=+—H=EK-

RZE—R"FLA=+8 EBRK— HWE&T%}:
TRy ?;zif'JT&_qu@&/E&EIE
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s associate is set out below:

18. R—EBE QT 2 #EE (#)
AREBEBERNR ZMBERMENEHLT

As at

30 September

2016

RZTE—RF

hA=+H

HK$

BT

Non-current assets ERMEBEE 199,443
Bank balances RITEE R 139,196
Trade and other receivables JE WA BR 3R B E b JE MR 427,177,820
Total assets BEE 427,516,459
Amount due to the Group FEAS A S B SR8 73,466,465
Trade and other payables JE AT BR SR M E A B AT 3R 128,170,648
Total liabilities BEE 201,637,113
Net assets BEFE 225,879,346
For the

year ended

Group’s share of net assets of an associate

AEBEEMN —HBER

30 September
2016

S
—T—RF
NA=+H
IFFE

HK$

BT

67,763,804

Turnover

e

7,713,265

Loss for the year

REEEBE

(19,828,881)

Group’s share of results of an associate
for the year

AEBARFEREE-HBERRRE

(5,948,664)
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &#Z =%

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—tFNA=ZTRLFE

19. THHEHERE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Unlisted investments, at fair value BARESERZIELTRE 143,634,340 126,721,080

The movement in the change of fair value is as follows: NABEEBS Z2EHBEROT:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

Notes HK$ HK$
Braz BT BT

At beginning of the year REH 126,721,080 119,384,000

Additions NE 34,500,000 13,000,000

Change in fair values DR EEE (a) 270,059 (5,662,920)

Disposal & (b) (30,187,080) =

Impairment B (c) (42,022,660) =

Reclassification of investment due to HRBHOLEMEHRHERE

partial disposal (d) 54,352,941 -

At end of the year RER 143,634,340 126,721,080

Notes: Bt i -

(@) Included in other comprehensive loss is an amount of HK$75,021 (a) FAHMEEEEMNSESIBT(ZT—X
(2016: loss of HK$5,662,920), which relates to unlisted equity F : 185,662,920 T) NEAFERBEAEZH
securities classified as available-for-sale investments held at HERAHEERENIELTRAZTSFEAL L7
the end of the Year and is reported as changes of “investment RIREESHFERE 2B - Z2BEBRE:
revaluation reserve”. The amount is represented by:

2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Reclassification adjustments for amounts HEEEIEZ 2 B2 EHM D HAE:

transferred to profit or loss:

Gain on disposal & s (187,080) =
Impairment losses VEREN SRt (158,000) =
Change in fair value during the year FARNRBEE 270,059 (5,662,920)
(75,021) (5,662,920)

(b) The Group had completed the disposal of its investment in (b) A&EHE E ruﬁJZ HEREBREBERARZEE
Starfame Investments Limited, the acquisition cost and fair value ER=ZF—R"FLA=ZFTHZHWEREARAR
as at 30 September 2016 of which were HK$30,000,000 and ﬁ%l?’f‘ﬁo 000,0007% 7T }230,187,080/& 71 c A =&

HK$30,187,080 respectively. Gain on disposal of HK$5,000,000

was recorded in the Year 2017.

—tFEEE

& U 255,000,000 7T °
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) For the Year 2017, certain unlisted available-for-sale investments
were individually determined to be impaired on the basis of
a material decline in their fair value below cost and adverse
changes in the market in which these investees operated which
indicated that the cost of the Group’s investment in them may
not be recovered. There was no impairment as at 30 September
2016.

(d) As detailed in note 18, the Group’s investment in Kendervon was
reclassified as available-for-sale investments on 31 December
2016.

Details of the principal unlisted equity securities represent
investments in private entities as at 30 September 2017 are

as follows:
Particulars
Place of of equity interest Acquisition
Name incorporation held cost
figRA
£4 S AL B EmsE KR A
HK$
B
Kendervon Profits Inc. BVI Ordinary share 54,352,941
(‘Kendervon’) (note i) RERAHS LR
Kendervon Profits Inc.
([Kendervon |) (#f7%i)
Uni-Venture International BVI Ordinary share 34,500,000
Investment Limited RERIHE Lak
(“Uni-Venture”) (note i)
Uni-Venture International
Investment Limited
([Uni-Venture |) (#1iii)
Merit Advisory Limited BVI Ordinary share 25,000,000
(‘Merit Advisory”) (note iii)  REBRZES ERR

Merit Advisory Limited
([Merit Advisory | ) (#fitiii)

Kendervon, Uni-Venture and Merit Advisory are three of the
ten largest investments of the Group as at 30 September
2017. The remaining seven of the ten largest investments of
the Group as at 30 September 2017 are disclosed in note 21
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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19. THHERE (&)

Hiit - (&)

(c) R-ZF—tFE BETHLTAHLEREMR
EBERDSHE NEREHEREZAREBEARETR
EERKARBERAREHRAELETSHERE T
EHY BT ARBEZRERAAEEIREDSE
EMEE-N_ZT-R"FALA=ZTHAEAELRE
B

(d) BB 5E18FT 5F 4l - AN & B 7Y Kendervon 2 & &
RZE—REF+_A=+—REHH>BAUHLE
ERE-

R-IE—tFENA=+tAZIEFLHTRAE
RRRAR T ZBE) BT -

Percentage
Unrealised of equity interest ~ Net asset value
gain/(loss) attributable attributable
Fair value recognised to the Group to the Group
BRAAER AREEGRE AREEGEE
ME  kE/(EB) BREEAL BE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B
57,123,000 2,770,059 66% 52,720,800
32,000,000 (2,500,000) 29% 1,316,600
19,712,000 (5,288,000) 28% 9,483,040
R=—ZZF—t&FhhA=+H' Kendervon: Uni-

Venture } Merit Advisory &K & B+ K& & A A
FH=FH-R_ZE—+tFNLA=TH £EET
ARERRIZEBEHARBEREA P IBREMN
21T -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)
Notes:

0]

(i)

Kendervon is an investment holding company, holding 30%
equity interest of its associate, CNI Bullion Limited, which is
principally engaged the provision of services on trading of gold
in gold market. Kendervon is an unlisted company. No dividend
was received during the year ended 30 September 2017. The
unaudited net loss for the year ended 30 September 2017 and
net asset value attributable to equity holders as at 30 September
2017 were approximately HK$5,610,000 and HK$79,880,000
respectively.

The fair value was arrived by the directors with reference to
the valuation carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent valuer, which is not connected with the Group
and has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar investments.

The Group is unable to exercise significant influence over
Kendervon as the Group does not have the power to appoint any
director of Kendervon and does not participate in Kendervon’'s
policy-making processes.

Uni-Venture and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
investment holding, providing workforce solutions on manpower
outsourcing, staff training and recruitment services. Uni-Venture
is an unlisted company. No dividend was received during the
year ended 30 September 2017. The unaudited net profit for the
year ended 30 September 2017 and net asset value attributable
to equity holders as at 30 September 2017 of approximately
HK$1,638,000 and HK$4,540,000 respectively.

The fair value was arrived by the directors with reference to
the valuation carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent valuer, which is not connected with the Group
and has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar investments.

The Group is unable to exercise significant influence over Uni-
Venture as the Group does not have the power to appoint any
director of Uni-Venture and does not participate in Uni-Venture's
policy-making processes.

19. T HHERE (&)

EE

(i)

(i)

Kendervon & — IR EER AR HHEHBE A
AFEL T ESREER AT BELTERSE
MREETHZELERIRERY - Kendervon
A LFTARC-REBE-E—+FhLA=+HI
FETEKREIARE B@E=_F—tFhA
STRLEFEZALEREBRFERR - —t
FNA=ZTAZRERBEABGEEFES N A
495,610,0007% 7T }279,880,000/% T ©

ARETHEESZEAREARBEZB LM
EERRBERRMETZEEEE - ZBLMGE
fMABEEEREAERIFGHRRARERBEL

AN & B &% S Kendervon TR BEATE - RE A
7N 2 B 1 & {F Kendervon {E{i] & £ R I 2 R
Kendervon JR 5 B 12 ©

Uni-Venture R B AR X R R EZRK -
BANNE - BIHIRBERBIREL S HE
RJTE e Uni-Venture BIE LT RA-REE=T
—tFNAZTBELEFETERBREMABRS B
ECZ+tHENAZTALFEZREEZLER
FERR-_ZE—tFAAZTEZREZBAR
15 & EFE D 5/ #%1,638,0007% 7T 124,540,000
BT °

RABHHESS S 56 mEE 2 B
BT s B R P 1T 2 B - B ST
MABSEARRAGERITEEARERES
-

7N 82 B 4% ¥ Uni-Venture (TR EAFE  RE A
NEBEEEEEUni-Venture (EAIEE R MR
Uni-Venture J& 5K 1B 12 -
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

Merit Advisory and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in investor relationship service. Merit Advisory is an unlisted
company. No dividend was received during the year ended
30 September 2017. The unaudited net loss for the year
ended 30 September 2017 and net asset value attributable
to equity holders as at 30 September 2017 of approximately
HK$3,105,000 and HK$33,868,000 respectively.

The fair value was arrived by the directors with reference to
the valuation carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent valuer, which is not connected with the Group
and has appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar investments.

The Group is unable to exercise significant influence over Merit
Advisory as the Group does not have the power to appoint
any director of Merit Advisory and does not participate in Merit
Advisory’s policy-making processes.

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

19. THHERE (&)

Kzt (%)

(iii)

Merit Advisory X EMf B AR F BN EREEBR
BR 7% > Merit Advisory BIE ETRAl-RBE_-T
—tFNAA=ZTHLEFETEBRERMBKS B
EZET—+tFNA=THIEFEZREEZER
FREERRZZE—tFNA=ZTAZREREARE
{hEEFED B A#%13,105,0007% 7T 233,868,000
HIT 0

ARETREFSEEAREREREZ B
BN BERRAETZAEEE - ZBILGE
BAEBAREERRAARANGERKREBEZ

7N 2 B 5% ¥ Merit Advisory ITEE AL REA
757K 5= [B] £ 7 Z F Merit Advisory {E{a] & & & I &
228 Merit Advisory SREE B 72 ©

20. ANRE BREREMERKE

RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
b it BT BT
Prepayments, deposits and TR RRIA - @ K& H fth fE Y5/ IE
other receivables 399,845 4,574,777
Margin receivables FE UL FF R RIE (a) 17,805,000 4,669,980
Amount due from an JE U5 AT S 1R B SRR
available-for-sale investment (b) 84,055,663 -
Amount receivable on disposal & Kendervon 2 JEW k1B (ff7£13)
of Kendervon (Note 13) 14,000,000 -
Amounts receivable on disposal & A & &% & 7 fE I8
of available-for-sale investments (c) 47,529,609 32,529,595
163,790,117 41,774,352
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. EARIE RERHMEWIE (&)
RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other RBERR BANRE e kEMBEKRIEL
receivables at the end of the reporting period approximated RHEREARBERE RZ2T—tFLA=T
their fair values. At 30 September 2017, no impairment loss H IEREERESE(ZE—RF &) -

was determined (2016: Nil).

Notes: Bt i -

(a) Margin receivables are generated from investment in financial (@) RAFE RERAABEFABREEZWBE
assets at FVTPL, with interest rate ranged from 0.001% to EFEAZBWARRIE RS F ZN F0.001
0.003% (2016: 0.001% to 0.003%) per annum for the Year. [E%0.003F (=ZZ— /X% :0.001Z £0.003F ) 57

B o

(b) The amount due from CNI Bullion Limited was classified as (b) EBRHEILFSBEARATDRER T —AF
amount due from an associate as at 30 September 2016. Upon NA=Z=+tBE 2B AER —HBEQARE R
completion of the disposal, the balance was reclassified as EXENE EHRETNHOELABRAIHEERER
amount due from an available-for-sale investment. The amount BeZRBEDATHILEFCREBR AR EKA
was made for financing the business of CNI Bullion Limited, and BmMEL  REER REFNEE (ZE—XRF:
was unsecured, interest-bearing at 8% per annum (2016: 8% per FRESE)TERBIREKEER-
annum) and repayable on demand.

(c) The balance is represented by: (c) HEHRIEUATET:

2017 2016
—ZT—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Receivable due from the purchaser of EWEBRKREBRARER ZHE
Starfame Investments Limited 30,000,000 -
Receivable due from the purchaser of FEUZ 1IN Network Education (BVI) Limited
IIN Network Education (BVI) Limited B ZHIE 8,864,732 16,864,718
Receivable due from the purchaser of JEYLUCCTV Holdings Limited & /5 2 %A
UCCTV Holdings Limited 8,664,877 15,664,877
47,529,609 32,529,595
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21.

PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial assets at FVTPL as at 30 September 2017

comprise:
Fair value: N
Unlisted bonds issued in Hong Kong REBEITZIELETES
Listed securities held for trading HEEE LMES
— listed in Hong Kong —BEL™
— listed outside Hong Kong —BBRINET

BRAREFABRBEEZHMBEE

Rt FAAZ+ERAABEHABNES
ZHBEERRE:

2017 2016
—g—t%  —EAF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

102,000,000 106,300,000

518,616,701 739,368,803
6,496,708 16,783,163

627,113,409 862,451,966

The fair values of the Group’s listed securities held for
trading were determined based on the quoted market bid
prices available on the relevant exchanges at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair values of the Group’s unlisted bonds issued in Hong
Kong were measured using valuation techniques in which
some significant input is not based on observable market
data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

All of the Group’s unlisted bonds issued in Hong Kong were

designated as financial assets at FVTPL. The fair values of

the bonds were measured using valuation techniques in which

significant input is not based on observable market data.

Particulars of the bonds, which are both included in the ten

largest investments of the Group held as at 30 September

2017, are as follows:

Place of Acquisition

Name Note incorporation cost

£ it HMAL BB B A

HK$

BT

Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited li Hong Kong 54,000,000
SHARBRAF (‘Gold Medal”) B

(re#l)

Rich Circle Investment Limited i British Virgin Islands 52,000,000
(‘Rich Circle”) EBRUHES

Notes:

(M)

Gold Medal is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and principally engaged in money lending business. It
is a wholly owned subsidiary of WLS Holdings Limited which
is listed in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 8021).
According to the terms of the agreement and subject to certain
conditions, both the Group and Gold Medal have the early
redemption rights as follows:

1. ROREABSRE 2B EE (&)

REBEBBRTZASER2IFLTESFTIEERR

AV

B ABRREZYBEE-ARER A

REDERERNBABBELFRABEDNEHE
AHEZEERMEE-

ER(BER-_Z—tFNA=ZTHAFFEZAE
B+ AREN) ZFBHOT:

Fair value as at

30 September

2017
R-B-+F
hAZt+RZ
DR

HK$

BT

52,600,000

49,400,000

pit:

Unrealised
loss Coupon
recognised Terms rate p.a.
2851
FEREE R FERX
HK$ %
B
1,400,000 From 12 September 4%
2016 to
11 September
2018
ZE-RE
NR+=RZE
ZE-N\%
NA+-B
2,600,000 From 26 August 4%
2016 to
25 August 2018
ZE-RE
NAZt+7HBZE
—E-N\%
NA=+HH

SRR MRBBEIMRILZBERAR  ETER
EREEB -ERERZERERAA (REBBR
FrEm (MR :8021) ) 22 EMB AR 1R
BHHE I GRENETHRERRT AEERE
B9 40T 2 Al AR = 4
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21. MAAR B AEBEEEB 2 HKEEE (8)

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Bist: (&)

(i)  (Continued) iy (&)

The Group can early redeem the bond at 100% of the REBET1£100% 2 K (EEARE % KR50% 2 K E
outstanding principal amount and 50% of outstanding coupon. BESRABEES -

Gold Medal can early redeem the bond at 100% of the total CHAIRBHERERESF 2HBBEN100%EREEHMH
amount of such bond together with any payment of interests TR AIME B B B 2 (Al fE 5T RS AT IR AT (& 5 o
accrued up to the date of such early redemption. Additional Mm% EZRREELARESBETAER-

1% will be given to the Group, together with the outstanding

principal and coupon.

(i) Rich Circle is a company incorporated in the British Virgin (i) Rich Circle R — MR EBREZAESTMKIZAE
Islands with limited liability. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of RAR -HAEKeREBARAT (REBE
Lerado Financial Group Company Limited which is listed in the AT E™ (RPN 1225) )22 BB AT -
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1225). According to the REBRZIERRRE FTERERRT AEE R
terms of the agreement and subject to certain conditions, both Rich Circle 57 40 T~ 2 5il & [0 42 -
the Group and Rich Circle have the early redemption rights as
follows:

The Group can early redeem the bond at 100% of the $%IT?§100%Z*1§i§$$%§&50%2$1§
outstanding principal amount and 50% of outstanding coupon. BESRABLEES-

Rich Circle can early redeem the bond at 100% of the total Rich Circle A 12 A B (& % 2 4 FE#1100% E @ & =
amount of such bond together with any payment of interests ERRAER B8 2 R EF SN FIRAER
accrued up to the date of such early redemption. Additional BH-MMN05% ERAEEACREEHE TR
0.5% will be given to the Group, together with the outstanding 58

principal and coupon.

The movement in the change of fair value in unlisted bonds is EL R AN = N

as follows:

2017 2016
—E—t#F —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

At beginning of the year NG 106,300,000 =

Additions NE - 106,000,000

(Loss)/gain on fair value changes AREZE (FER) s (4,300,000) 300,000

At end of the year RER 102,000,000 106,300,000
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21. BB AEBREEB 2 UM KEEE (&)
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Particulars of the listed securities, which are included in the IWEHF(BERZZE—tFLA=TAFEZ
ten largest investments of the Group held as at 30 September REBTREERN) 2FBRAT:

2017, are as follows:

Percentage
Market value of equity
Particulars as at Unrealised interest Net assets
Place of of equity Acquisition 30 September gain/(loss) attributable attributable to
Name Notes incorporation interest held cost 2017 recognised to the Group the Group
P& RZB—t& BRRREE  AEEEARE rEEERS
&8 M ERELBH B KERA NA=TRZHE Wit/ (F8) EZA L BEFE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
KOALA Financial Group Limited i Cayman Islands Ordinary shares 113,400,121 166,273,683 52,873,562 15.38% 31,512,697
(Formerly known as Sunrise REHS LER
(China) Technology Group Limited)
HESREEERAA
(MIBHERBEEEERAF)
Larry Jewelry International Company i Bermuda Ordinary shares 59,466,132 67,016,000 7,549,868 4.96% 27,800,850
Limited BRE LER
BEXERBARERAA
China e-Wallet Payment Group i Bermuda Ordinary shares 57,206,891 41,713,200 (15,493,691) 4.48% 28,413,683
Limited (Formerly known as RCG BEE EER
Holdings Limited)
HEEEEAEEERAA
(ABEZBREEE (ER)ER
DA
China Information Technology /v Cayman Islands Ordinary shares 39,036,678 40,174,848 1,138,170 4.99% 27,337,266
Development Limited ReHs LaR
HEESHRERERAR
InvesTech Holdings Limited v Cayman Islands Ordinary shares 23,083,667 21,942,000 (1,141,667) 4.25% 50,377,758
BAZERERRF HEES il
The remaining three of the ten largest investments of the AEER-_Z—tHFNA=ZTHAZFHR=ZETRK
Group as at 30 September 2017 are disclosed in note 19 to WERBENNGRE M BEIREMEE19

this Consolidated Financial Statements.
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &2 =2 —tFNA=+HILFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8226) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacturing and sales
of straw briquettes, trading of commodities, trading of garment
accessories, manufacturing and trading of LED digital display
products, and investment in securities. No dividend was received
during the year ended 30 September 2017. Net loss attributable
to equity holders of approximately HK$71,897,000 was
recognized for the year ended 31 December 2016. According
to the latest published consolidated financial statements of
KOALA Financial Group Limited as at 30 June 2017, its net
asset value attributable to equity holders was approximately
HK$204,894,000.

(i)  Larry Jewelry International Company Limited (stock code: 8351)
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in design and
retailing of jewelry products and sales of Chinese pharmaceutical
products, dried seafood, health products and foodstuffs in
Hong Kong, Macau and the People’s Republic of China. No
dividend was received during the year ended 30 September
2017. Net loss attributable to equity holders of approximately
HK$83,807,000 was recognized for the year ended 31 December
2016. According to the latest published consolidated financial
statements of Larry Jewelry International Company Limited as at
30 June 2017, its net asset value attributable to equity holders
was approximately HK$560,501,000.

(iii) China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited (stock code: 0802) and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of biometric
and RFID products and solution services. No dividend was
received during the year ended 30 September 2017. Net loss
attributable to equity holders of approximately HK$176,783,000
was recognized for the year ended 31 December 2016.
According to the latest published consolidated financial
statements of China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited as at
30 June 2017, its net asset value attributable to equity holders
was approximately HK$634,234,000.

(iv) China Information Technology Development Limited (stock code:
8178) and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities
trading, money lending business, provision of IT infrastructure
solutions and maintenance services, the in-house developed
products segment engages in the lease of in-house developed
computer hardware and provision of software development and
system integration services. No dividend was received during
the year ended 30 September 2017. Net loss attributable to
equity holders of approximately HK$48,143,000 was recognized
for the year ended 31 December 2016. According to the latest
published consolidated financial statements of China Information
Technology Development Limited as at 30 June 2017, its net
asset value attributable to equity holders was approximately
HK$547,841,000.
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1. RAREABSRE 2B EE (&)

Hiat -

V)

(iii)

(iv)

HrremEBMAR AR (BRHMAKR:8226) R H
MBARFERSLEERBEERER BRE
S REKBREHEHES SENEELEDEBET
ERUREBELFRE - RBEE-_T—tFENLA=ZT
BILEFEYEKRAERNRE - RBEZT—RF
T A=+ BULFERIARESEARES
BIFEE A 4971,897,000/8 T - IR B pE S RE &£ &)
ERABR-_TE—tHFNA=ZTAHZREOPZH
BRAMBRER ERESEARGEEFEAY
204,894,0005% T °

BNEAEBRERAR (BRHA5E:8351) REHK
BRAEZZERES BFARTFEAREZMBNYS
BT R TEREERURBERELE BK - RE
ERkRm - REBE_Z—tHEAA=+tHLE
EXEKBANRE - RBEE-T—~"F+=A
ST -HALFERRAREFBEAEBGEEFER
#183,807,000/& ;Lo IRIEE X B ABR B R A A
RZE—+EXNAZTRZERANBGEATHR
* HRERFE AEILEEFEA4%560,501,000
HIT e

FRERSYNSEEAERA A (KKK :0802)
R E KB A A E Z W F IR A Y B A0 5T 5 Al
(RFD)EREBAFRRE - RBEE-T—tF
NA=ZTHELEEESERRTARE REE=
E-RNE+-_A=Z+—AULFERIABEZEA
JE {5 518 0% 58 A #9176,783,00058 7T o R H 8
BXNEBAERARAN -_ZE—+FNA=+tHZ
BT RGEMBRE EREFBEAEBGEE
JH{E 5 #7634,234,00058 7T ©

FRESNEERER QA (RMHRE:8178) &
HBAREENREZSFEE NEEXEK REE
AR B R ER T R R ERE - £ A
BERODRELAANLRABENEISEE A KIE
HEHHAERERERRE RBEE=_2—tF
NA=Z+THELEFETERREARE -REE=
T-—ANE+-A=-+—ALFERIABREEEA
&k &5 18 % 58 5 4948,143,0007% 7T » IR B B {5
ERERRERATGR-_Z—+tESA=+AHZ
BTG EVBHRE EREFBEABRGEEE
F1E 5 #)547,841,00078 7T °
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

21.

22.

23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v) InvesTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 1087) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
network system integration including the provision of network
infrastructure solutions, network professional services and
mobile internet software of Mobile OA Software Business,
the trading of telecommunications equipment, and money
lending business. No dividend was received during the year
ended 30 September 2017. Net loss attributable to equity
holders of approximately RMB69,602,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD 81,699,000) was recognized for the year
ended 31 December 2016. According to the latest published
consolidated financial statements of InvesTech Holdings Limited
as at 30 June 2017, its net asset value attributable to equity
holders was approximately RMB1,009,843,000 (equivalent to
approximately HKD 1,185,359,000)

The Group has pledged the financial assets at FVTPL of
HK$475,990,851 (2016: HK$634,740,694) to secure the
margin payable granted to the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits
of HK$52,151,520 (2016: HK$13,420,371) at prevailing
market rate.

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 21 December 2016, the Company and the Counterparty
entered into a formal sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Company sold 34 shares or 34% of the share
capital of Kendervon to the Counterparty. Upon completion
of the aforesaid transaction on 31 December 2016, the
Company’s shareholding in Kendervon decreased to 66% and
the Counterparty held 34% equity interest in Kendervon, the
Company’s equity interest in CNI Bullion Limited decreased
from 30% to 19.8%, and the Company had resigned as the
sole director of Kendervon on 31 December 2016. Since the
asset was available for immediate sale in its present condition
and its sale was highly probable, 34% of the Group’s interest
in CNI Bullion Limited was classified as asset held for sale as
at 30 September 2016.

21.

22,

23.

BAREFAREREZHMBEE (#)

Kzt (%)

(v) BEFAERARAR (RGN :1087) REMB R
AEENERUBEEZAES REREARKE
HRESBATR BEEERBEBHHRAE
HEEGEFNBRDEHBENT EEEERE
UEHREEK REBEE-_T—+tENA=1THIE
FEIEERNEARE -RBEE_T—X"F+=
A=+—BLEFEBRREFEARGLEEFHE
A AR 169,602,000 (& 7 481,699,000
BIL) cBEBEAMIZERERARRZZE—tFA
S+HEZBRTBRAVBERE HREFAA
EEEEFMEAHARY1,009,843,0005T (HE
7 #91,185,359,000/8 7T ) °

AN & B 2 E #475,990,85158 7T 2 1A R B A
ERREBEZUBEE (ZT—/N%F 634,740,694
BITINBRTFAEBZENTRIBIEER-

ReRBREEEY
RekReFEMRERBETMSNETEZ
%2 HA 4R 17 17 752,151,520 T (=T — N & :
13,420,371 7T) °

PEARBEFEHEZEE
RZFE—ARE+ZA=+—RB AQARERZY
FEAVEREEH=H B ARAREMRSH
75t & Kendervon 2 34 8% % 15 8034 % & 4K - i =
T—AF+_ A=+ HEXLLXZ%E AR
A 7 Kendervon 2 IR #E 5 > £66% * 22 5 ¥ 75
¥ A Kendervon IR # 2 34% - AR & ) B3 75
SREARAF ZBAEH30% TFEE19.8% 1
RAARMERZZE—AFE+_A=+—HBHHT
Kendervon 2 —EFH BN BEHBEER E ALK
HTAIHAREERBEREELE  AEER
REALFSREERAAZIM%EENR T —A
FRA=tTHESEARBIELEAE-
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23. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)
The net proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

23.

TERFFELHEZEE (8

ZHEERCMEFRAFERAKEEAEREE
RBEZRERE F Y SRR ERE -

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24 Hh B RERETEH
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —ZE—RF
Note HK$ HK$
b &t BT BT
Margin payables FEFF R SR (a) 13,499,647 102,252,055
Accruals fEEtE 10,275,452 6,713,783
23,775,099 108,965,838

Note: MiEt -

(a) Margin payables bear interest rate ranged from 8% to 10% per (a) MAEFE- fﬂ#ﬁ)?&hziﬂ < FEEE10E (=
annum for the Year (2016: 8% to 10%). The margin payables are T RNF:8EE10E)T R -ENFRRETH
secured by financial assets at FVTPL, repayable on demand and BARE D‘UKTE SERIE 2 IS EEEERARAR
were guaranteed by the Company on behalf of a subsidiary. ERRERIARRAREKMBRAELER-

25. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 25. st EBE

Interest-bearing borrowings represent the 8.5% coupon bonds FEEEAARA —tFNARBEETZ

at a nominal value of HK$10,000,000 issued by the Company ETEZ%W,OO0,000?%TEZB SERRESH -BEFH

on 5 September 2017. The bonds will be matured in 2 years
and the whole principal amount is repayable at the date of its
maturity while coupons are repayable annually. The Company
may request early redemption of the bond after one year of
the issuance date of the bond. The redemption right is not yet
effective as at 30 September 2017.

112 EEAIBERAT | CAPITAL VC LIMITED

RAFERLRE2HBASEAREIHAEE

,u,

ERRFEN -ARBARESFETEHE—

FRELRAMERES R_F—tFAA=T
B EORE R ARER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR MR

For the year ended 30 September 2017 &1Z —F—t+FNA=THILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R A
Number of Number of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
of HK$0.005 each of HK$0.025 each Amount
SREE SREA
0.005% T2 0.025%8 T2
EERYE EBRHA HE
Notes HK$
g3 BT
Authorised: EE:
At 1 October 2015, R-ZZ-1%+A-8
30 September 2016 and ZE-~ENA=TAR
1 October 2016 “E-~FTA-H 40,000,000,000 - 200,000,000
Share consolidation BRin A B d (40,000,000,000) 8,000,000,000 -
At 30 September 2017 RZE—+FNA=TH - 8,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 October 2015 W-ZE—1F+A—-H 1,565,081,441 - 7,825,408
Exercise of warrants TERRER a 299,998 = 1,500
Issue of bonus shares BITAL IR b 1,565,221,684 = 7,826,108
At 30 September 2016 and RZE-"EANA=TAK
at 1 October 2016 RZE-~"F+A—H 3,130,603,123 - 15,653,016
Exercise of share options TEERE ® 313,000,000 = 1,565,000
Share consolidation Rt & B d (3,443,603,123) 688,720,624 =
Issue of rights shares HRET - 2,066,161,872 51,654,046
At 30 September 2017 R-ZE—+FNA=1+AH - 2,754,882,496 68,872,062
Notes: Htat -

(@) As a result of the bonus issue detailed in note (b) below, the

exercise price of warrants was adjusted from HK$0.41 to
HK$0.205, with effect from 23 December 2015. During the Year
2016, 159,755 warrants were exercised at a price of HK$0.205
and 140,243 warrants were exercised at a price of HK$0.41 into
299,998 ordinary shares of the Company, in aggregate.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 11 December 2015,
an ordinary resolution was passed for issuance of bonus shares.
1,565,221,684 ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each were issued
to shareholders on the basis of one bonus share for every then
existing share as at the record date of 22 December 2015.
As a result of the bonus issue, the exercise price of warrants
was adjusted from HK$0.41 to HK$0.205, with effect from
23 December 2015.

(a) EIRTXHMEEE(b) FTaFill  BATALRR - RARHEE
ZATEEE BB THE A0.2058T B =
E-— A+ A+t ZHRAR - R-_ZT—A~F
& 159,755 iR I & B 120.2058 7T 2 (B &
140,2431) R I HE 75 B 1204178 T 2 (BB EIT(E
LA 5 4 ££299,908 8% AN A &) & 3 A% -

by R=ZZ—AF+=_A+—BRITZRERFI
ASLERBETARBBE —HEBRAZR-
1,565,221,684 % & IR E {80.0058 ;t 2 R B
RS (T —AF+=-A=+=8)5RE
BRrZEBROESE —RAKRZ EERBRRET-
HRBITAR BRREEZITEBEEDH041E T
HEA02058T E-_E—RE+-_A-+=H
A
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c)

The existing share option scheme of the Company was approved
and adopted by shareholders’ resolution at the annual general
meeting held on 10 December 2013 (the “Option Scheme”),
unless otherwise cancelled or amended subject to resolution
passed at general meeting of the Company the Option Scheme
will remain in force for ten years from 10 December 2013. As
at 30 September 2017, the remaining life of the Option Scheme
was approximately 6 years and 9 months. Detail of the Option
Scheme are disclosed in the Report of the Directors.

During the Year, 313,000,000 share options were granted
to advisors of the Company on 21 November 2016 and fully
exercised on 28 November 2016 at a price of HK$0.118 each.
The share price on the date of exercised was HK$0.13.

The total fair value of share options granted was HK$3,881,200
determined by using the Binomial Pricing Model and the
Company recognised total expenses of HK$3,881,200 for the
year.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

— Fair value of option per share 0.0124
— Exercise price per share 0.118
— Share price at grant date 0.118
— Options life 2 years
— Risk-free rate 0.770%
— Dividend yield 0.00%
— Volatility 113%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were granted,
lapsed, exercised or expired under the Option Scheme since
10 December 2013. There was no outstanding share options
under the Option Scheme at the end of the year.

With effect from 8 February 2017, every five (5) issued and
unissued shares of the Company of HK$0.005 each were
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of the Company of
HK$0.025 each.

On 15 March 2017, the Company completed the rights issue
(“Rights Issue”) on the basis of three rights shares for every
one existing shares held on 17 February 2017. 2,066,161,872
rights shares were issued at price of HK$0.20. Gross rights
proceeds of HK$413,232,373 of which HK$51,654,046 was
credited against share capital. The remaining proceeds of
HK$361,578,327 after offsetting the share issuance costs of
HK$7,000,901 were credited against the share premium account.
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26. A& (@)
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(c)

ARBzEEBREFIEN _"F—=F1+_A
THRETZERBFRE LERFRBRIUER
R ([ERERE)) BIESTRARBRRA
BLBBRIRTHKEE T ABIE S
B-E—=Ft+_AtBRFTFA—EAXR-
BE_Z-—tFAA=ZTH BREAIOFHK
FHORNFNEA -BREFIZHBERES
FHE NP -

RAEE - 313,000,0007 R ER — T — <
+—A=Z+—HBEFARREBERER=Z—
+—A=+N\BRER.1M8B T ZBREDH
FEoRITER I ZREA0.13 T -

2w

iz b BB AE 2 A A (B2 % 53,881,2008 L0 Ty
FR_BEHRECERUET BAQRRRAEE
WA R & 42%83,881,2007 T °

BREZAABERER:

—SOhEREZAAE 0.0124
—BRITEE 0.118
— R HE 2 B 0.118
—REAREF 24
—E AR X 0.770%
— B = 0.00%
— K& 113%

BB R 0R Ty 4R E 2R IR (IR BB IR AR T 2 Ik
BHEHHE) AEEGH YRERCRASER
PISERARIR B 2 EMFRBEEEHFRE-

BREXFEBEEEN BT —=F+=-A+HE"
BB RER BB R B ER L R 1Tk
JER - NAFRER  BEREER T LA RITE
Z FERHE -

BE-ZT—tE_ANBR - FERAG)REREE
0.005B L2 ARRIEBITRABRITROEHAE—
(1) BB EE0.0258 L 2 A A A& HHAR 1D ©

R-EBE—+&E=F+HB ARATKER=
T—+tF A+t BREARMHER
=R ARG 2 EEETHR (THER]) AR
A)120.207% T 2 {8 15 %% 172,066,161,87 2% 4% i%
A& 17 o (AR FT 1S SR IB 48 86 5413,232,373%8 0
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27.

28.

—tFNA=ZTRLFE

WARRANTS

Upon completion of the open offer on 17 April 2014, for
every four offer shares taken up in the open offer one bonus
warrant would be issued. A total of 171,393,024 units of the
warrants (“Warrants”) with an aggregate subscription amount
of HK$42,848,256 were issued. Each of the Warrants confers
rights to the registered holder to subscribe for one new share
of the Company in cash at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.25 per share, subject to antidilutive adjustment, at any
time from the date of issue up to and including 17 April 2016.

Pursuant to the terms of the Warrants, the exercise price of
the Warrants shall be adjusted from HK$0.25 per consolidated
share to HK$1.25 per consolidated share upon completion of
the share consolidation on 12 June 2015, and from HK$1.25
per consolidated share to HK$0.41 per consolidated share
upon completion of the Open Offer on 9 July 2015.

As a result of the bonus issue detailed in Note 26(a), the
exercise price of warrants was adjusted from HK$0.41 to
HK$0.205, with effect from 23 December 2015. During the
Year 2016, 159,755 warrants were exercised at a price of
HK$0.205 and 140,243 warrants were exercised at a price
of HK$0.41 into 299,998 ordinary shares of the Company, in
aggregate. The net proceeds from the exercise of warrants
was approximately HK$90,250.

All of the outstanding Warrants have lapsed on 17 April 2016
and there was no outstanding Warrants at 30 September 2017
and 30 September 2016.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on
the net asset value of the Group as at 30 September 2017
of HK$980,246,091 (2016: HK$1,121,291,972) and on the
number of 2,754,882,496 ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each
in issue as at 30 September 2017 (2016: 3,130,603,123
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each).

27.

28.

R EF

RAFBER-_ZT—NMFOA +tHZKE ®
ARABRERSRBHRBEEROHELE —HA
FIRBHBEE - B REE© T R42,848,256 8 L 26
171,393,024 RIREE ([RIREF ] ) BB HE
T-BHRABEER FEZHEABRTRAEE
—TE-XFNAt+LEtH(BEER)ERUNRS
ZER25EB L (AIEERBERE) 2VHAR
BERE -—BRARAFRD ZEF -

*E%Fwﬂxﬁ;ﬂi%ﬂ%ﬁ R-ZT—RFA+=H
TERBRNDEHE RREZ2TEESBAERE
HRH025B TRERERE HHIRM1.258 T
MR=ZZT—RAFEtANBEXRAAEER KB

FhE G0N 1.258 TTAE R ERA IR 170.41
BT
X M 5E26(a) AT Al 2 B ATAT B - RERAERE 2

TEEEHOMBTHE 0206 T B =F
—AF+ A+t =ZHBREHR - R=2T—RF
€ 159,75510 RAX#E #E B 120.2055 70 2 B 1% &
140,243 RAREHZ B 1R0.41E T 2 EIEEITIE -
LA ¥ & #£299,998% 7K N & E A AR o 1T E R KR
WEFE 2 P15 3B F 88 B #190,2507 7T ©

FiT B 15 R 77 R A HE —RNFOA+T+
E?&?ﬁ(%&ﬁ’x‘:ﬁ—tiﬂﬂ =THRZZE—X
FAR=THAEBRITERRMERE -

—7

BREEFE
BREEFEDNBREAEER_Z—tF 1A
=+ HZBE¥E980,246,09178 7T (= Z — X
F:1,121,201,9728 T) KRR —_FE—tF N A
=+ H 22,754,882,496 % & i% [ {60.025/%8 7T 2
BETLB Hﬁ(:%*/_\¢13130,603,123ﬂﬁ
BRI {E0.0057% T 2 LAk ) 5T &
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29. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

2. AEATRBERS

(a) In addition to those disclosed in other sections of the (a)
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered

BREGGMBHRREMEHSHERESIN

MREAAEEEBETNBAEALTETZ

into the following transactions with related parties and RSMT:
connected parties during the year:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
b &t BT BT
Continuing operations FEREEK
Insight Capital Management (HK) Limited  Insight Capital Management
("Insight HK") (HK) Limited
(TInsight HK 1)
Investment management fee paid ENIREERE (i) 600,000 600,000
Discontinued operation BRI
CNI Bullion Limited ("CNI Bullion") RS R EBR AR
(PR FERE])
Interest income received B F B U A (ii) 1,345,813 3,432,191
Notes: Htat -

(i) Insight HK is an investment manager of the Company
and considered as a connected person under 14A.08 of
Chapter 21 of the Main Board Listing Rules. Pursuant to
an investment agreement (“Insight HK Agreement”) dated
17 October 2014 entered into between the Company and
Insight HK, Insight HK agreed to provide the Company
with investment management services (excluding general
administrative services) commencing from 21 October
2014. Pursuant to its terms, Insight HK Agreement is
renewable automatically for successive periods of two
years each upon expiry unless terminated by either the
Company or Insight HK serving not less than 3 months’
prior notice in writing on the other party. Currently the
monthly investment advisory fee is HK$50,000. Pursuant
to the extension agreement dated 11 October 2016,
the agreement was extended for another two years to
16 October 2018 with the above same terms and fee.

The Company and Insight HK have mutually agreed to
terminate the investment management agreement with
effect from 1 January 2018. Details are presented in note
37.

(i) Equity interest in CNI Bullion decreased to 19.8% during
the Year. The Group no longer has significant influence
over CNI Bullion, upon completion on disposal of 34%
equity of Kendervon which holds 30% equity interest in CNI
Bullion (see note 13). The interest income received from
CNI Bullion represented that for the period from 1 October
2016 to the completion date of disposal of CNI Bullion.
As at 30 September 2016, the Group had 30% equity
interest in CNI Bullion and the advance to CNI Bullion was
unsecured, bears interest at 8% per annum and repayable
on demand.
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(i) Insight HKAAXRR 2IREBEA  WIRE
FIR ETRAIE21EFE14A.081 18 & —
Z 3@ AL iRIEA AR HEInsight HKET 32
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(lnsight HK# &) ' Insight HKE & f =
T—ME+A-t+—BRERAAQAERERE
EIERE (—RITBRBRAIN) o BIEH K
# o Insight HKipZ SR EREFEBBENM
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29. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY 2. BEATRBEXRS (8)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) EEBEEBABZME

—E R CE-RFE RAEEEFRTE
EEEXRBZABZHEWT:

The remuneration of directors, who are also members of
key management, during the Year 2017 and 2016 was as

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—REF
HK$ HK$
;‘EJTE /%TE
Short-term benefits SRR R 1,293,333 1,309,255

EERTETBRABZMEIAFMER
S2REMALZRBARTSBEEE -

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

BYFRTESTRA LHBEEALZIRZS
DRASBEHBEEREFEBBEPER
—REBKERETREETEEEARS
ZHZIER MEBAGKBEATAE A
the terms of the arrangements governing the transactions RFERREIRTRA)EEREF % -

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
the above related party transactions were entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business on
normal commercial terms and were in accordance with

that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30. EEEHA
At 30 September 2017, the Group had pledged the following R-FE—+tFhLA=1+H A£EEEFTHIE
assets to secure the margin payables: EFRENAFRERIBZER:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Financial assets at FVTPL BAREBEFABZREUMEEE 475,990,851 634,740,694
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31.

32.

tFAA=TRILEFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employee’s basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of approximately HK$68,085 (2016: HK$56,500)
represents contributions payable to the schemes by the Group
in respect of the current financial Year.

PENDING LITIGATION
In HCA 1700/2011,
Company filed the defence on behalf of the Company in

since the legal representative of the

December 2011, for more than 6 years, the Plaintiff has not
taken any further steps at all in respect of the proceedings.
The said law suit was taken out by Mr. Chan Ping Yee (the
“Plaintiff”) and involves a dishonoured cheque issued by
the Company for the amount of HK$39,000,000 allegedly
payable to the Plaintiff. The law suit came about because
there was an intended transaction which eventually fell
through. It has always been the view of the Company’s legal
representative that the Plaintiff’'s claim is totally without
ground. The Company had taken legal advice and has already
given instructions to their legal representative to make an
application to strike out the claim with costs, for (1) lack
of merits of the claim, and (2) want of prosecution. Such
application will be made in due course, and the Company will
keep the shareholders informed on the status of this matter.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Board is aware,
there are no litigation or arbitration proceedings made or
threatened to be made against the Company, which would
have a significant impact on the business or operations of
the Company. No provision was made for the year ended
30 September 2017.
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31.

32.

iR 1K 18 I 5T &

AEERBREMEABLA BRI REERSE
BESFEZEERI —TAERENREERE -
HRADRBEBREZEAFECANLLTE IR
BZRBESECRANENSERABEERA
Hif-ZBaEet8lzEER —EBIEEEAS
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FIRFR

B BHCA 1700/2011553F 52 - B AR BERR K
REARBR =T ——F+ZAARRBELR
[RGB NF AR EFREITHFARRE(AE—
178> Ll ;% EFF 72 A Chan Ping Yee ?ﬁi(ﬂ?
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

33. AR FHBMR K

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—K
HK$ HK$
78 T BT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Plant and equipment 7 K 3% - =
Interests in subsidiaries RBAR 2 e 47 56
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 57,123,000 =
57,123,047 56
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and BANFOR - RE RH B KIR
other receivables 22,864,732 20,039,684
Amounts due from subsidiaries i N ENGIE @ 853,351,240 946,587,233
Tax recoverable Al Y B # 18 3,417,602 —
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREeEEY 20,396,730 13,250,411
900,030,304 979,877,328
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables and accruals HAnfENFRIB M EE A 2,414,171 2,012,503
Tax payable FERT B 1R - 5,733
2,414,171 2,018,236
Net current assets mE)EEFE 897,616,133 977,859,092
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMEAMGE 954,739,180 977,859,148
Non-current liabilities JERBAG
Interest-bearing borrowings SFEEE 10,000,000 =
Net assets BEFE 944,739,180 977,859,148
Capital and reserves BEAR R i#EE
Share capital & A 68,872,062 15,653,016
Reserves & 875,867,118 962,206,132
Total equity attributable to RATIRERFB AEIEERETE
equity holders of the Company 944,739,180 977,859,148
Chan Cheong Yee Kong Fanpeng
BRE= =N
Director Director
EZE EZE
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34. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 34. xR A*E

Retained
Capital Share Investment profits/
Share reduction options revaluation (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
REER/
B &(E B A ik 1 BRERE REEMRE (RatEE) )
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 October 2015 RZZ-RE+A—B 932,994,786 22,826,010 - - 11,482,530 967,303,326
Profit and total comprehensive 74 27| B 2 BN
income for the year e - - - - 2,680,164 2,680,164
Issue of ordinary shares by~ LABTATRR R BT
bonus share issue LBk (zt2em))
(Note 26(b) (7,826,108) - - . - (7,826,108)
Share issue expenses RETER
(Note 26(b)) (W#2266)) (40,000) - - - - (40,000)
Exercise of warrants TR RBREE
(Note 26(2)) (Wi#26() 88,750 - . - - 88,750
At 30 September 2016 RIZ—R%F
AA=1A 925,217,428 22,826,010 - - 14,162,694 962,206,132
At 1 October 2016 WZE-"%1+A—H 925,217,428 22,826,010 - - 14,162,694 962,206,132
Loss for the year AEEFR - - - - (482,936699)  (482,936,699)
Other comprehensive income A% {2 E Wz
for the year = - - 2,770,059 - 2,770,059
Total comprehensive income  AFEE2AKZLES
for the year . - - 2770059 (482,936,699)  (480,166,640)
Grant of share options Rt B RE - = 3,881,200 = = 3,881,200
Exercise of share options T RIE (fr260)
(Note 26(c)) 35,369,000 - (3,881,200) - 3,881,200 35,369,000
Issue of ordinary shares by~ BAAER 73L& 4T
right issue (Note 26(e)) LRI (W226e) 361578327 - - - - 361578327
Share issue expenses RipE{TER
(Note 26(e)) (W3226(e)) (7,000,901) - - . - (7,000,901)
At 30 September 2017 RIZ—t%F
NA=tH 1,315,163,854 22,826,010 - 2,770,059 (464,892,805) 875,867,118
(i) Share premium (i) RHBERK

(i)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in share premium account are distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reduction reserve

The capital reduction reserve is derived after setting off
of the capital reduction with the accumulated losses as
at the date of the capital reorganization of the Company
which became effective on 8 February 2013.
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34. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(iii) Distributability of reserves
At 30 September 2017 and 2016, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for the distribution to the owners
of the Company calculated in accordance with the
laws of the Cayman Islands was HK$873,097,059 and
HK$962,206,132 respectively.

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the subsidiaries held by the Company as at
30 September 2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation,”
registration

Class of and operations
Name shares held  ZFMMH L,/
% FEROERN ZTEREXRLE
Concolor Holdings Limited Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong
TRk RERTEE /T
Ethnocentric Investment Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong
Limited LAk EBREAESE/ B
Like Capital Limited Ordinary Hong Kong
BEEXRBRAT ER £
Huge Energy Holdings Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong
Limited LBk HBRAEE /B
REERAERAR
Smart Able Holdings Limited Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong
BRERBRAA ER REREAHS /BB
Extra One Investments Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong
Limited LBk KBRAEE /B
Golden Goal Enterprises Ordinary BVI/Hong Kong
Limited Rl REBRAHE/BE

34. AR A#E (#)
(iii) &2 7 2K
RIB—TFR-_Z-RFAA=1TH "R
BREHESEMGFEATHRIIKTAREHE
B AZREBERED R /873,097,059 7T &
962,206,132/ T °

35. TEMBAA
RIB—tFNRA=ZTH RRBAFEEZH B
REIZFBWOT:

Nominal value
of issued share
and fully paid
share capital
ERTROEE
RBERE

US$1
(B

US$1
1ETT

HK$3
3BT

US$1
1ET

US$1

1ETT

US$1
(Y

USS$1
(B

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

AR TEL
REBDL
Directly Indirectly
E# CiF:3
100% =
100% =
- 100%
100% =
100% =
100% =
100% =

Principal activities

TRER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REER

Investments of listed
securities and
unlisted bonds
in Hong Kong

RENBEBZ L HESR
L3 ETESR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REEZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
REER
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35.

36.

37.

BAREIRAR A

tFAA=TRILEFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group leases its offices under operating lease
arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

—FRN
FE_FEERF(

Within one year
In the second to fifth year, inclusive

35.

36.

BIEEREME)

TEMBAE (@)
ERIHARREETRAIENERAEEEE R
BEZASEMBAR -EFR/IH H ALK E

AR RS EERERALE:
REBANAR
AEBERRAA

REGEERORYE FEEREETHRAS

PRERE BAR - AN & E R AT B RS fE o 2 1 AT e
KREBOERRZZEBRSAENT

Lease for rented premise are negotiated for an average of two
years and rental are fixed for an average of two years.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Change of Investment Manager

The Company and Insight Capital Management (HK) Limited,
the existing investment manger of the Company, have
mutually agreed to terminate the investment management
agreement with effect from 1 January 2018. There is no
penalty and/or compensation to any parties in relation to the
termination of the investment management agreement.

On 29 December 2017, the Company entered into a new
investment management agreement (“New IM Agreement”) to
appoint China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited (“CES”) as
its new investment manager for an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2018 up to 31 December 2020.
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37.

2017 2016

—E—+tF A

HK$ HK$

BT BT

134,200 -

121,000 -

HEMERORALHARTHRAME MBS MU
FE BT
HEMEEHE
ERREEEA

A QA AR A IREREEE Alnsight Capital
Management (HK) Limited & £ & # E & L&
EREpE BT \F—A—ARBER-FM
— T ERRIEFREER M EARESIRKR
S AT B (E -

R-E—tF+-A=-+hB ARFLHH
EEE W ((FREEEGZR])  UEREFRBEL
7& H(BB)BRRAR ([ XARFEH]) BEME
ERAN MFEHE_T—N\F—A—HEE
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37.

38.

BATE R AR MY RE

—tFNA=ZTRLFE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

Change of Investment Manager (Continued)

Reasons and benefits of the entering into of the New
IM Agreement

Under the New IM Agreement, the annual management fee
of CES is HK$600,000. There will be no performance fee
payable to CES under the New IM Agreement. CES has
extensive investment management experience in Hong Kong
in relation to investment companies listed under Chapter 21
of the Listing Rules (it is currently the investment manager
of six listed investment companies, namely, China Innovation
Investment Limited, China Investment and Finance Group
Limited, China Investment Development Limited, Unity
Investments Holdings Limited, Earnest Investments Holdings
Limited and China New Economy Fund Limited) and has
strong business connections in the PRC. CES has the
competitive advantage to act as the investment manager of
the Company and to make available investment opportunities
and research on underlying investments in listed and unlisted
equities in Hong Kong and the PRC as required by the
Company’s investment objective and is capable of providing
professional investment services to the Company.

In addition, as confirmed by CES, all members of the
Investment Team of CES (“CES Team”) are designated
to provide exclusive services to six existing investment
companies which are listed on main board of the Stock
Exchange according to Chapter 21 of Listing Rules. Unlike
other service teams of CES, CES Team is an independent
team to provide investment services to just the aforesaid six
listed investment companies. CES Team does not provide
investment services to other clients of CES. Accordingly,
CES is proven to have satisfactory and sufficient investment
management experience, and adequate time resources, and is
competent to assist the Company to make sound investment
decisions.

The Directors consider that the appointment of CES will be
beneficial to the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform
with current year’s presentation.

37.

38. H

BREHREHE (#)

ERREEEA (&)
FIVFTRE B a5 i i R 7
BEMBREEERHE KABFNFEERER
600,000 T - IRBEHIR E B E K RAEHK
TEIHNREBA - AAEFHFABREAERE
FWHRAEE FTHRERRABHEEREA
EEER(EBANELETERERR (B RE
MIREARAR FEEREEBERA TEP
B ERBEERAG & —REZERARAQ
zzﬂﬂﬂxé“% B R A T&#I%ﬁ%@;ﬁ%xéﬁﬁﬁ
NEMREER AT R P EAEE N ERSE
BN ABHFEAGFTERAREARRKREE
BAGIRANRREBZERBEHREERE R
MEREBRFE LM RIELTRENEBIZE
BaEMMARRIIRMEERERY -

BESN AREFEHER  HABHFREBEK ([
REFER)WAAEKEOEEERMARE LD
RAUAFBNERBELIAER EMAHANERBEELER
AR E IR - B2 R85 1) H A IR 7% B B 1
Rl RFEHFBERRR LM AELETREQER
HIRE R H B LB G - e KRB FE K AR LK
EFMEMEFPREMERERS Bt ER
REHFEECAMBEREENRETELR I
AARRNERER BENBHAQRMLES
BH)IREIRE o

EEZRR REAREFBERARRARERRE
X &

£
=

1o

o

E‘I
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years/period, as extracted from the

audited financial statements, is set out as follows:

AEBRERERYBRER2BERMAUBHFE
HRENEXE BELEBBEHEHIIMNT

RESULTS £
Fifteen months
Year ended Year ended ended Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 June 30 June
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—tF —E-RE —T-0E —E-mF —T-=F
AA=1H NA=1+H AA=+H ~NA=tH ~NA=1H
Jlg:3: 5 IFEE ETAREA EFEE EFE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Turnover EEXE (514,825,909)  (235,969,328) 406,671,315 136,230,385 21,124,405
(Loss)/profit before tax BBA (BB) /&7 (577,951,816)  (265,561,083) 358,403,182 60,360,411 (7,821,511)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FEH (AX) /8% (10,065,716) 58,555,454 (60,922,203) 12,204,732 =
(Loss)/profit for the year/period attributable 72 B £ 5 A
to equity holders of the Company EIEEE /5
(B#R)/BF (588,017,532)  (207,005,629) 297,480,979 72,565,143 (7,821,511)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHAEHE
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 June 30 June
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tf SN2 —2-0E —E-mF “T-=F
RA=TAH hA=+H hA=1H ~NA=1H ~NA=1H
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT BT
Total assets BEE 1,014,021,190 1,230,257,810 1,633,577,444 751,912,182 420,931,922
Total liabilities BEE (33,775,099)  (108,965,838)  (299,667,173)  (65,700,698)  (48,755,393)
Total equity attributable to equity ARRRERAA
holders of the Company iR EE 980,246,091 1,121,291,972  1,333,910,271 686,211,484 372,176,529
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